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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$423
million and profit attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$20 million for the year ended 31 March
2009. Gross margin increased to 76.3 percent, compared to 74.9
percent in last year. However, operating margin significantly

decreased to 6.6 percent, compared to 14.0 percent in last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group continued to explore the fashion accessories market
by operating retail outlets for accessories brands COCCINELLE
and SEQUOIA in Hong Kong during the year. Other than
accessories market, the Group also developed menswear market
during the year when more REISS shops were opened in Hong
Kong. With the store of REISS opened in China during the year,
the Group introduced more European designs into the mainland
China retail market and enhanced the foundation of a multiple

fashion retailer in the greater China market.

During the fiscal year of 2009, the Group had opened
self-managed shops in major city, Shanghai, in China. By
continuing to restructure the sales network in China, the Group
aimed at extending its sales network in the mainland China
market and utilizing the most effective and efficient channels to
serve its target customers. The sales network in Taiwan and
Macau were improved and brand image of MOISELLE were

enhanced in these markets during the year.
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Chairman’s Statement

To increase brand equity and explore new markets of both house
brands and European brands had been the primary business
strategy of the Group. In order to cope with the slow down of
retail market in Hong Kong due to the economic downturn after
the financial tsunami, the Group focused on more stringent
management of resources in the manufacturing and operating
processes. The Group was also studying overseas potential
markets so as to increase the market diversification for the

brands under the Group.

OUTLOOK

The fashion retail market in Hong Kong has faced the adverse
effects of the financial tsunami which might last for a certain
period of time in the coming year. The Group will continue to
formulate focused strategies to increase its competitive edge and
improve the market potential of its products. Increased resources
will be allocated to research and development of product
design, as well as marketing and visual merchandising for brand
building, in the coming year. Renewed image and new styling
for MOISELLE brand products will be launched and target at both
existing and potential customers. The Group also continues to
raise the customer service standards so that customers can enjoy

the valuable shopping experience in the Group’s shops.

Other than the shops opened in last year, the Group has opened
one more COCCINELLE shop in the Gateway shopping mall after
the year end. In the coming year, the Group will continue to
build up the image of the European brands operated and
cooperate with respective principals to improve product mix and

to expand the customer base.

The Group will also take the growth in economy in mainland
China as future focus in business development. Despite the
economic fluctuations in the short term, the long term
development of the China economy is considered contributory
to positive returns to the Group’s brand investments. The Group
is going to expand its sales network in more cities, such as
Shanghai and Hangzhou, to achieve increased market

penetration in the country.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %&bk M4 R A 7

MOISELLE




MOISELLE Annual Report 2009 4 4 #

ECPiE &

Chairman’s Statement

AEESEBERCESRERBT 2REEE- It The Group will continue to enhance the brand equity under the
S AEBEREBBRABTEmEZBERERET multiple brand strategy. In addition, the Group will keep on
R -AEBETEBARERERBIHTES  BRR refining the brand images of each brand under the Group. The
ARRSIESEEEF - Group will also allocate resources in developing overseas

markets in order to gain more potential customers in future.

2] Appreciation

RANEBRRESEHTERRREBRMF B8 On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to thank all our
BREIZEIRAXTEBFH2EREH & shareholders and our fellow business partners, our management
EEN ERIFLEE2EEEFPRAFERE and staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and
oz o most importantly our prestigious customers for their support

during the year.

FE Chan Yum Kit
EE 7N Chairman
&8 ZEENFLAZ+TH Hong Kong, 24 July 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Group maintained retail
outlets of European brands including one (2008: one) retail
outlet of COCCINELLE, an ltalian fashion accessories brand, and
three (2008: two) retail outlets of REISS, a UK high street fashion
brand, and the point of sales of SEQUOIA, a French accessories
brand in the imaroon shop at the shopping mall of Langham
Place. The additional retail outlet of REISS was opened at the
Festival Walk shopping mall during the year. By establishing
retail outlets in the shopping districts with high pedestrian flows,
in addition to strategically launched marketing campaigns, the
Group successfully expanded the brand mix and increased the
brand equity of the brands under the Group. The broadened
customer base also contributed to the increase in the brand
awareness of both the house brands and the European brands

operated by the Group.

During the year under review, the Group opened the first REISS
store in the mainland China in Sanlitun, Beijing. Besides, it
maintained its sales network in the mainland China under the
three house brands, MOISELLE, mademoiselle and imaroon, of
the Group. There were 61 MOISELLE stores (2008: 64) operating
in the mainland China as at 31 March 2009. 43 (2008: 42) out
of the 61 (2008: 64) stores were operated as consignment stores
and 11 (2008: 5) were retail shops. The remaining ones were
operated by franchisees. The sales network of the brands
mademoiselle and imaroon was adjusted in the mainland China
region during the year. There were 15 (2008: 11) mademoiselle
stores and 10 (2008: 13) imaroon stores operating as at 31
March 2009. The new store locations for mademoiselle and
imaroon brands included cities of Shenzhen, Xian, Chongging,
Nanchang, Guilin, Wuhan, Taizhou, Dalian and Shekou. The
adjustment in sales network aimed at capturing the most suitable
locations in the competitive market and diverse cities in China.
The multi-brand strategies had kept bringing competitive edge
and synergy effects on the brand building and increase potential

in the China fashion retail market.
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The established network in the market in the mainland China
region continued to provide future growth opportunities to the
Group and to increase the brand exposure in the major and
second-tiers cities. Under the implementation of integrated
marketing and visual merchandising strategies, activities in both
Hong Kong and China regions had delivered and strengthened
new brand image and new design concepts for products of
MOISELLE during the year.

In Hong Kong, the Group operated 16 MOISELLE, 3
mademoiselle and 7 imaroon (2008: 18 MOISELLE, 4
mademoiselle and 7 imaroon) retail outlets as at 31 March 2009.
The three brands were separately managed with each having its
own distinctive target customers. The design teams for each
brands worked out their own collections and image stories from
different creative sources of fashion trends. The Group’s retail
operations, however, were managed to pursuit for objectives in

the most effective and efficient manner.

Two (2008: two) stores of MOISELLE was maintained during the
year in Macau. With the increased tourists traveling to and
expatriates staying in Macau, the demand of prestigious fashion
products is expected to grow and the Group will continue to
introduce more attractive and valuable fashion apparel and

accessories products into the market.

At 31 March 2009, the Group operated in Taiwan market 7
MOISELLE stores (2008: 9) and one mademoiselle store (2008:
Nil), in Taipei, Taoyuan and Hsinchu. With the rebuilt sales
network in Taiwan, the Group had gradually changed all the

stores in Taiwan to self-managed shops during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover increased by approximately 2% to
approximately HK$423,088,000 (2008: HK$415,464,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2009 as compared with 2008. As the
established sales network in the PRC, Macau and Taiwan had
generated improved performance, the revenue of the region
outside Hong Kong increased by 4% to approximately
HK$190,644,000 (2008: HK$182,466,000) during the year under
review. The relatively stable markets outside Hong Kong had
slightly increased the segment turnover ratio from approximately
44% of 2008 to approximately 45% for the year ended 31 March
2009.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment slightly decreased
by approximately 0.2% to HK$232,444,000 (2008:
HK$232,998,000) which was mainly due to the slow down of
retail market in Hong Kong after the financial tsunami during the

financial year under review.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 76%, as compared to approximately 75% of
the previous year. The gross profit margin was maintained within
the normal range of gross profit of the Group. Operating
expenses for the year ended 31 March 2009 totaled
approximately HK$300,555,000, compared to approximately
HK$256,818,000 for 2008, increased by approximately 17%.
The increase in operating expenses was due to the increase in
new shops for European brands in Hong Kong market and
adjustment of sales network in the mainland China. Major
components of such increase came from rent, staff cost,
transportation and other selling and distribution costs. As a
result, the overall operational efficiency was decreased and the

operating margin became 7% (2008: 14%).

The profit for the year ended 31 March 2009 was approximately
HK$20,057,000 (2008: HK$52,299,000), decreased by
approximately HK$32,242,000, 62%. The decrease was resulted
from the increase in operating expenses in a significantly greater

rate as compared to that of the increase in turnover.
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Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group financed its operations with internal
generated cash flows. The Group adopts a prudent financial
policy such that it can meet the financial obligations when they
fall due and maintain a sufficient operating fund for the
development of the Group’s business. At the end of the year, the
Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$100 million (2008: HK$82 million). As at 31
March 2009, the Group maintained aggregate composite
banking facilities of approximately HK$68 million (2008: HK$87
million) with various banks, of which approximately HK$6
million (2008: HK$5 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2009, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 4.1 times (2008: 3.4 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was zero (2008:
0.4%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2009, no (2008: carrying value of approximately
$4 million) investment properties and leasehold land and
buildings were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to

the Group.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2009, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks against facilities extended
to certain wholly owned subsidiaries. The above banking
facilities amounting to approximately HK$68 million (2008:
HK$87 million) were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$6 million (2008: HK$5 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company has also
issued a single guarantee to a supplier against obligations or
sums payable for goods and services supplied to a wholly owned
subsidiary. At 31 March 2009, such obligations amounted to $1
million (2008: $1 million).

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %55 B4k A FR A 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2009, the Group employed 1,241 (2008: 1,355)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Salaries of
employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical
insurance cover, training programmes, a share option scheme

and a share award scheme.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 50, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 32
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Mr.
Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in November 2001
and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in December
2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding Chinese Award
by the World Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr. Chan
holds an honorary doctorate degree in management from
Armstrong University in the United States. He was also awarded
2004 Associateship by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He is a fellow member of
Asian Knowledge Management Association. He is the husband of
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze
Chun. Mr. Chan is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.

Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 50, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for
the Group’s design and development functions, as well as
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 32 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the
Company, and is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun. Ms. Tsui is
the sister of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.

Mr. CHUI Hing Yee, aged 58, is an executive director. He is one
of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for the
manufacturing operations of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Chui has
over 32 years of experience in the garment manufacturing
industry. Mr. Chui is the brother of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the

Company.
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Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 31, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of

the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 49, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 21
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial practice.
She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from University of
Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then passed the
Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a solicitor. Ms. Yu
has over 20 years’ experience in property investment and
management. Ms. Yu was appointed as China-appointed Attesting
Officer in 2003 and was also appointed as an adjudicator of

Immigration Tribunal in December 2006.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 48, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the chief executive officer of Merkur Holdings Ltd. He
has 18 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.
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Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 55, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is
currently the chief of finance operations and systems
development of Hospital Authority. She has more than 32 years’
experience in management consulting and systems
implementation in both the public and private sectors. Ms. Wong
is a member of the Certified Management Accountants Society of
British Columbia in Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in

commerce from Queen’s University in Canada.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Hoi Yuen, lke, aged 46, is the general manager of
the design and merchandising operations of the Group. He has
over 22 years of experience in fashion design and production

management. He joined the Group in January 1987.

Ms. PANG Lin, Elaine, aged 39, is the chief operating officer of
the Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 18 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a bachelor’s degree in Chinese
law from Peking University. She is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of

Chartered Secretaries & Administrators of the United Kingdom.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %55 B4k A FR A 7



ARBHRNOREBEEREEREER  AHFZ
BEIEEHE -BY  BE- ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ%&t%
Ean?E'J

TEERERT J
AARRBE-ZBANF=ZRA=+—-HLEE
—EETERBEXZMARQAE %J:miﬁﬁﬂ
TERHRAUDME4FBREERERTR (1
EERTAD Rz FREX  ERARNLTERE
22 (ESEDEF TRETHBRR)-E
ZERRRREELABRRA LA ZEREE
THEBRREINZERE -

BEXZEETA

RAREHEMETRAUMSFI0E 2 EHBEITA
ESETRFRG2BRETA (REFHD - 4
REFEEARARFZTATA - EAEXRQF
ZESHERTHR RESREE-ZTThEF=
A=1T-HLEFERAGBTRETRAFAZRE -

Exe

EZeRAtEEETAN ETNEHITES
DTRIBRARNEE (XF) BROBLL -HREE
EERRBELSE UR=ZFEBIFHTES
DRAIRREELT REKLEREREL L -

Annual Report 2009 4 B4

1 36 B iR ol

Corporate Governance Report

The company is committed to meeting statutory and regulatory
requirements and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The company has complied with the code provisions listed in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2009. The only
exception is that Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board
of directors (the “Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief
executive officer. The Board considers that the current
management structure ensures consistent leadership and optimal

efficiency for the operation of the company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises seven directors, four of which are
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Mr. Chan Sze
Chun, and three are independent non-executive directors,
namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.
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During the year ended 31 March 2009, four board meetings

were held. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

i FE A2 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 3/4
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 3/4
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 4/4
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 4/4
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 4/4

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

The relationship among members of the board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors a confirmation of independence for the year
ended 31 March 2009 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors to be

independent.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one executive
director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, one remuneration
committee meeting was held. The attendance of each committee

member is set out as follows:

o FE R0 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 11
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 1/1
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 11

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration and the terms of
employment of the directors. During the year, the remuneration
committee has assessed the performance of the executive
directors, determined the discretionary bonuses of the executive
directors and approved the terms of non-executive directors’

appointments.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.
The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined

based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to the independent
auditors, KPMG, are analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
EiTRE Audit services 1,100,000
FEEF RIS Non-audit services 140,000
1,240,000

ERERES AUDIT COMMITTEE

RATMKBETRAFEI2IRALEREES ' B
EERREREFAEE M BERRBRERAIMBEF -
ERZEEERARLNRAZUBYFHTESEN
DRAREELL (EF) - REBREERERR
Lt YMEESER -

REZEZZZNE=ZA=1+—-HLFE ZH77
CAREREEEER BRLEEERECHERS
T

=

REELL
REBEE
ERRLE

FR BERZESCHEEEERNAEEMRA
ZERRARE ANEE P HRFENBR
R HEHBULHMEERET  HAEENHE - X
BEEEFHABACEEREEBRHEARERN
BEREZEAQANREARVBERBESIEH 2
ER BITERRKERECRN URBEBIME
ZZRIREREBEEERERE °

The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the
company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun
Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

i RC 8
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, raised
queries and obtained explanations from the management on
issues related to financial and operational control procedures of
the group, and considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of an internal control system which is essential for
effective and efficient operations of the group and is
fundamental in the thorough and regular evaluation of the nature
and extent of the risks to which the group is exposed. Internal
control is defined as a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in relation to

the following:

. Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
J Reliability of financial reporting; and
. Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the group,
focusing on three major business cycles of the group, and had
been satisfied with its effectiveness on monitoring and evaluating
the risks. Based on the results, the directors were dedicated to
implement various initiatives to further enhance the existing
internal control system alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS

The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view. The directors are responsible for reviewing the

adequacy of staffing of the financial reporting function.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The statement of the independent auditors of the group regarding
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the

independent auditor’s report on pages 31 and 32.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the operations of the
company and its subsidiaries during the financial year is set out

in note 12 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the percentages of the
five largest customers combined and the five largest suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the group’s total turnover and

purchases, respectively.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the group for the year ended 31 March 2009 and
the state of the company’s and the group’s affairs as at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 33 to 126.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out in pages

127 and 128 of the annual report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$20,057,000 (2008: HK$52,299,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 26 to

the financial statements.
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An interim dividend of Hong Kong 2 cents per share (2008:
Hong Kong 4 cents per share) was paid on 21 January 2009. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
Hong Kong 2 cents per share (2008: Hong Kong 7 cents per
share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2009 to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
28 August 2009.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the group during the
year ended 31 March 2009 are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the company during

the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS
Bank borrowings of the group were settled during the year ended
31 March 2009.

Particulars of bank borrowings of the group as at 31 March 2008

are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material obligation
for the payment of pension benefits associated with such plans

beyond the annual contributions described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan have
chosen to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of
the total salaries of participating employees that choose to
participate in the defined contribution scheme, deposited into
individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.
Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.

DIRECTORS
The directors during the year ended 31 March 2009 and up to

the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chui Hing Yee

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Mr. Chan Yum Kit, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian and Mr. Chu Chun Kit,
Sidney will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with article 87 of the company’s articles of

association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

EENE

Nature of interest

PRERAN B4
Mr. Chan Yum Kit

®IELL
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

ERRZ L
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

190,872,000 DA R (BEE1)R(2)
Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))

190,872,000 DB R (a1 R(2)
Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))

30,000 BA

Personal
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”), Ms. Tsui
How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%,
46.7% and 6.6% respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will
therefore be deemed to be interested in the 190,000,000 shares

held by Super Result as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each of
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed to be interested in

the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed to be interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui will

be deemed to be interested in as family interest and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain directors also have beneficial
interests in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting or to participate in any distribution or

winding up in a subsidiary.

The directors of the company have been granted options under
the company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out

in the section “Share option scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2009, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the company to grant
options to selected participants as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the group. The Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of ten years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are authorised,
at their discretion, to offer full-time employees, executives or
officers, including the directors of the company or any of its
subsidiaries or any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers
who will or have contributed to the group, options to subscribe
for such number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon acceptance of
the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the company by

way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant and the average closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date
on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event such period
shall not exceed ten years commencing on the date on which

the option is granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme may not exceed 28,000,000
shares, representing 9.93% of the issued share capital of the
company as at the date of this report. The number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme can be increased up to
30% of the shares of the company in issue from time to time,

subject to the approval of the company’s shareholders.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed 1% of the shares of
the company in issue as at the date of grant, without prior

approval from the company’s shareholders.

Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed both 0.1% of the
company’s share capital and a value of HK$5 million as at the
date of grant, without prior approval from the company’s

shareholders.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the company had granted options to
certain directors and employees of the company and other
participant to subscribe for shares of the company. A summary of
the movements of the outstanding share options during the year
ended 31 March 2009 is set out below.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %55 B4k A FR A 7
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RIS E (F) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
RREZE RERRRE
Number of share options EHAEE
ER P3Gl
R-BENE BAY/  H-EEAE Market value
BA-A £ FR % ZA=t-A sk per share
4 ERi BfifE Lapsed/ &8 RE immediately
Balance Granted ~ Exercised  cancelled Balance  Exercise RiLAH frfEsE before the
RERAL asat  duringthe  duringthe  during the as at price Date Exercisable  date of grant
Eligible person 1 April 2008 year year year 31 March 2009 per share of grant period of options
gt (B/R/%) (B/B/%) Br
HKS  (DD/MMAYYYY) (DD/MMAYYYY) HKS
Ez
Director
3
Mr. Chan 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 1.15 2/412002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
hat
Ms. Tsui 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 115 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
HEE
Chui Hing Yee 500,000 - - - 500,000 115 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/412012 1.14
RE&
Chan Sze Chun 900,000 - - - 900,000 1.15 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
R1%
Yu Yuk Ying, 100,000 - - - 100,000 1.15 2/412002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
Vivian
RELHEEHH
Continuous 20,000 - - - 20,000 115 2/412002  2/4/2003 to 1/4/2012 1.14
contract
employees in aggregate
o T
Suppliers of 200,000 - - - 200,000 115 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
services in
aggregate
5,920,000 . . - 5,920,000
BRATES  RDR - HEZERAE - MWBRRH Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
REMBARREE-—FFAF=A=T—BL March 2009 was the company, any of its holding company,

FEBRBEEREM-—FTMFERENRZHE  BEXR
RAZESHEIRTHRAESAREZBBRARR
TABRZFRAERBAQXAREMEMEAE
BRI EFMERRNES -

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.
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BATBREZ2EERERS SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

RZZBZEAFZA=Z+-0 BEAQFARER As at 31 March 2009, the interests or short positions of the

SREEHRPIE R EFE S RMATRE following shareholders, other than the directors and the chief

BRADRAESREIEZETHAEZN  UTRER executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of

RARROBEEARDTEREARBERSFRBE the company which have been disclosed to the company

RGIEXVBHAERD R 2 BRATAR ¢ pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the

register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

BREAEAEHERT

BAZBMAB D

HrRROHEE Approximate percentage of

BREE Aggregate long aggregate interests to
Name of shareholder position in shares total issued share capital
Super Result 190,000,000 67.37% (HtzF1)
(Note 1)

Commonwealth Bank of Australia 16,262,000 5.77% (Hfaz2)
(Note 2)

First State Investments (Hong Kong) Ltd 16,262,000 5.77% (K1&E3)
(Note 3)

Queensland Investment Corporation 20,000,000 7.09% (Ktzt4)
(Note 4)

Yeoman Capital Management Pte Ltd 20,000,000 7.09% (K1aE5)
(Note 5)

Yeo Seng Chong5t 4 ([ Yeo L4 ) 20,800,000 7.38% (HKtite)
Mr. Yeo Seng Chong (“Mr. Yeo”) (Note 6)
Lim Mee Hwazz = ([LimZ % ]) 20,800,000 7.38% (Ktite)
Ms. Lim Mee Hwa (“Ms. Lim”) (Note 6)
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

1.

The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan, Ms. Tsui and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%, 46.7% and
6.6% respectively.

Commonwealth Bank of Australia was deemed to be interested in
the 16,262,000 shares held by First State Investments (Hong Kong)
Ltd by virtue of indirect controlling interest of 100.0% in First State
Investments (Hong Kong) Ltd.

The capacity of First State Investments (Hong Kong) Ltd in holding

the 16,262,000 shares was an investment manager.

The capacity of Queensland Investment Corporation holding the
20,000,000 shares was a trustee for Queensland Investment Trust
No.2.

Yeoman Capital Management Pte Ltd was deemed to be interested
in the 20,000,000 shares held by Queensland Investment
Corporation by virtue of direct controlling interest of 100.0% in
Queensland Investment Corporation. The capacity of Yeoman
Capital Management Pte Ltd in holding the 20,000,000 shares was

also an investment manager.

Yeoman Capital Management Pte Ltd was an indirectly controlled
corporation of Mr. Yeo and of his spouse, Ms. Lim. As a result, the
interest held by Yeoman Capital Management Pte Ltd was deemed
interest held by each of Mr. Yeo and Ms. Lim. 800,000 of these
shares were held by Ms. Lim as personal interest and Mr. Yeo was
deemed to be interested in the 800,000 shares held by Ms. Lim as

family interest.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the

chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the

sections “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”

and “Share option scheme” above, no person was recorded in

the register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO

as having an interest or a short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the company as at 31 March 2009.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the company, any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
in which a director of the company had a material interest,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
independent auditors of the company is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 July 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) set out
on pages 33 to 126, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in

the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31 March 2009 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 July 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-ZTAE=A=1—HI-4FZ (LLE%F]R) For the year ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ZEEhEF —ZETN\F
2009 2008
g Fr Fr
Note $'000 $000
S Turnover 3 423,088 415,464
SHERA Cost of sales (100,098) (104,280
EF Gross profit 322,990 311,184
HA Other revenue 4 2,237 3,158
H 5 F 58 Other net income 4 3,230 435
SHER D HEA Selling and distribution costs (236,606) (196,390)
THREMEERX Administrative and other operating expenses (63,949) (60,428)
R Profit from operations 27,902 57,959
BE RN Finance costs 5(a) (141) (266)
THEE 2 fHE Net valuation (losses)/gains on 13
(E#8) = FEE
— T R EEY) — land and buildings (181) 2,159
-REMF ~ investment properties (200) 2,490
BRFE AR Profit before taxation 5 27,380 62,342
Frig® Income tax 6(a) (7,323) (10,043)
FRER Profit for the year 9, 26 20,057 52,299
FEAARRARERERRZ Dividends payable to equity shareholders
TEERE : of the company attributable to
the year: 10
FREERRIKMZ Interim dividend declared and paid
HEIRE during the year 5,641 11,281
FEAREZRDIKZ Final dividend proposed after the
REARR B2 balance sheet date 5,641 19,742
11,282 31,023
BREF Earnings per share 11
AR Basic $0.07 $0.19
#E Diluted $0.07 $0.18

FA0Z1260BE 2 MFB AT HEHRK 2 — D °

The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial

statements.
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RoZTHE=A=+—8 (LUEEFI7R) At 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EENE —ETN\F
2009 2008
k3 Fr Fr T T
Note $'000 $'000 $’000 $/000
FRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets
- REYHE — Investment properties 13 15,820 16,020
- HtEEEE — Other fixed assets 13 199,036 230,911
214,856 246,931
HibEE Other assets 15 14,226 20,519
BEREHMEE Deferred tax assets 24(b) 3,002 3,227
232,084 270,677
REEE Current assets
HihemEE Other financial assets 16 - 490
FE Inventories 17 73,349 84,376
FEWERF R E WS Trade and other receivables 18 47,185 56,098
A EEBIE Tax recoverable 24(a) - 1,260
HERRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19 100,432 81,579
220,966 223,803
mEEE Current liabilities
FEARAMREMEMF  Trade and other payables 20 49,507 60,209
RITEX Bank overdrafts 21 - 1,499
P B Tax payable 24(a) 4,194 4,486
53,701 66,194
REBEEFRE Net current assets 167,265 157,609
EERRBAGEHEE Total assets less current
liabilities 399,349 428,286
FRBERE Non-current liabilities
RIEFIEHRERS Deferred tax liabilities 24(b) 15,395 19,204
AEERE NET ASSETS 383,954 409,082
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RoZTHE=A=+—8 (LUEEFI7R) At 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EFhE —EENE
2009 2008
B T Fr T T
Note $'000 $'000 $000 $000
BEXR#E Capital and reserves
IR Share capital 25 2,821 2,821
#E Reserves 26 381,133 406,261
BRRER TOTAL EQUITY 383,954 409,082
ESEN-EENF LA THBERELRFAIE o Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
24 July 2009.
)
)
) EZ= Directors
BRERA RISHE )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
FA0E126E ZMFZBAMBRERZ—HD ° The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial
statements.
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RoZTHE=A=+—8 (LUEEFI7R) At 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

“EENF —EEN\E
2009 2008
k3 Fr T T T
Note $'000 $'000 $’000 $/000
FRBERE Non-current assets
RHE A E 2= Interest in subsidiaries 14 188,217 172,752
REEE Current assets
HttemEE Other financial assets 16 - 490
FEURBRF R HAbFEUWER  Trade and other receivables 18 28,109 109
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19 244 9,686
28,353 10,285
A= Current liabilities
R R MR  Trade and other payables 1,737 1,850
1,737 1,850
REEEFE Net current assets 26,616 8,435
BEEFE NET ASSETS 214,833 181,187
XK EE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 25 2,821 2,821
i Reserves 26 212,012 178,366
MR R TOTAL EQUITY 214,833 181,187
EEeN—EFhE+L A -+ BB A3 o Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
24 July 2009.
)
)
) EZE Directors
BRERZR #®I5E )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
FA0E126H 2 MEBAY B HR 2 — &2 ° The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZTAE=A=1—HI-4FZ (LLE%F]R) For the year ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EFhE —EENEF
2009 2008
Mt Fr Fr
Note $'000 $000
RUA—B2RESAHE Total equity at 1 April 409,082 351,554
HEENREZERZ Net income recognised directly in equity:
WA FE
RE B E QA Exchange differences on translation of
B ER 2 ELZ5E financial statements of PRC subsidiaries 26 592 11,774
BEERZ Lt REEY 2 (Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of land and
B (B4t B buildings held for own use,
EHIBREL TS5 net of deferred tax 26 (20,394) 38,580
EEREREIAZER Net (loss)/income for the year recognised
(B8) BAFE directly in equity (19,802) 50,354
A EFEFEF Net profit for the year 26 20,057 52,299
FRAERBBAR Total recognised income and expense
BB for the year 255 102,653
AEESRIZLEZRE  Dividends declared or approved
during the year 10 (25,383) (45,125)
R=EZA=+—HZEZHLE Total equity at 31 March 383,954 409,082
FA0R 126 2 MFEB ARG BIHREKR 2 — 2D ° The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial

statements.
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HEBESREE
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE—ZTAE=HF=1—HI-4FZ (LLE%F]R) For the year ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

“EENE —EENE
2009 2008
s Tr Tr T Tr
Note $000 $000 $'000 $'000
geEy Operating activities
BREE AR Profit before taxation 27,380 62,342
REER Adjustments for:
- T REEYR — Net valuation losses/(gains)
REMEZEE on land and buildings and
BB/ (k) 38 investment properties 381 (4,649)
-nE — Depreciation 23,233 17,834
-EEEEZRERBE - Impairment losses on fixed assets - 344
- FSHX ~ Interest expense 141 266
— B A — Interest income (887) (1,783)
-HEEEEEZ — Net (gain)/loss on sale of fixed assets (37) 419
(k) BEFE
-~ BERSCERR — Net realised and unrealised
AEBER/ losses/(gains) on trading securities 14 (23)
(W) F58
- BRI — Foreign exchange gain (1,441) (113)
EEESRHAIZ Operating profit before changes
"B in working capital 48,784 74,637
HthEERD /()  Decrease/(increase) in other assets 6,293 (6,895)
BERD,/ () Decrease/(increase) in inventories 11,027 (12,341)
P Ut B 0 T L At P Mk Decrease/(increase) in trade and
ZEA /() other receivables 8,841 (12,025)
FESERR R H A PR3 R (Decrease)/increase in trade and
2 CA2) /& other payables (10,702) 15,367
RELBELE RS Cash generated from operations 64,243 58,743
RE /(B BE Tax refunded/(paid)
-BRBEBREHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (19) (1,682)
—REBBREH — Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 1,259 592
- B PERE - PRC tax paid (7,475) (9,028)
REFHHE2 Net cash generated from operating
BegEtE activities carried forward 58,008 48,625
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mEBsRER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

“ETHE=A=+—BILEE (LABFIR) For the year ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ZEENF —EENE
2009 2008
g Fr Tr Tr Fr
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RAREEDHMEZ Net cash generated from operating
REFE activities brought forward 58,008 48,625
REEH Investing activities
FHAB=M@A®EMZ Decrease/(increase) in deposits with
SRITERHED/ () banks with maturity more than
three months when placed 3,333 (3,333)
BABEEEENNK Payment for purchase of fixed assets (14,768) (24,078)
HEEEEEMBNA Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 111 343
BABZIHESCR Payment for purchase of held-to-
maturity securities - (15,525)
FEFHE SR Proceeds received upon maturity of
BRI FrERE held-to-maturity securities - 19,500
HESREEMBHRE Proceeds from sale of financial assets 476 =
ELE ) Interest received 959 1,770
RETHHRAZESFE  Net cash used in investing activities (9,889) (21,323)
BMEEH Financing activities
ERFIE Interest paid (141) (266)
ERRE Dividends paid (25,383) (45,125)
METHFARLFHE Net cash used in financing activities (25,524) (45,391)
RERREEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash
#h,/ CRd) B and cash equivalents 22,595 (18,089)
REA-BZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REZEY at 1 April 76,747 90,306
EX2gBo 38 Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes 1,090 4,530
R=B=t—-HZHELK Cash and cash equivalents
BeZEY at 31 March 19 100,432 76,747

FEFRERS

FR o REBELL494,000TT B R Z5E—H o

FAE1N260EZMEBAMBIRER 2 -2 °

Major non-cash transactions

The group traded-in a motor vehicle for $494,000 during the
year.

The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FEEFHBXR
@ EHEH
R BRRCEREBEAMAE
B EERZ(ERRBREE
A (B EEMAEAZERNKE
B BREER) (FBEFERD
kZzB) EEAREHRARSE
BAR ARG 2 BHERERE - &
MBBERINE(EBBEREZ N
BRAR (B ]) B s EmBRRD
ZERARBERE U TRAKER
RANETESFTHRBE -

EBREMAMASEHEME THER
BIETN(EBHBREEL) - I
RAKERARRA ZAEAHEE
RAE R AR PR A o ME 2851
RASHABRBEZSHHE
HARERAZERAEEMEE 2%
RMEHSTRREB I RREZ
EMBHRAZER -

1.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited &% 5 B4k A FR A 7

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies

adopted by the group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the group and the company. Note 2 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in these financial statements.
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(b)

MBHREZEREE
BE-ZZAF=A=+—HBLLHE
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MBAR (RBEAIAEE]
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BYIR (R T X 2ETBRMERE)
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- REWME (RHE) S
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W %5 & B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2009 comprise the company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

//group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies

set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(e));

- other leasehold land and buildings, for
which the fair values cannot be measured
separately at the inception of the lease and
the entire lease is classified as a finance

lease (see notes 1(f) and 1(g)); and

- investments in securities (see note 1(d)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EESFHBEGE)
by HBBRZEREE(F)

ANEE B A A AR (S R AR B R E
L - St et 2B MR
EEH AABFERNGIETE
HER - MZAEE G 2B
EEMRUARHE AEEZER
EMRURHBEER -

FHEEBERERA(EEMBERS
ER)RAELHEMBREFTEKR
SEHE RIEHBAREETF
EEREAAZABKR G ER
Bt 5E327% 3k o

(© HEQXA
MEARREZAEEEHNAF -
EREEERIBEWEQSNTE
MEE R WA EEE
BAR ERAREFNEFEE-BEEA
TENBEEERERCEEEEH
FENEE -

SEAHE QR NIKRES B EGH
HEMEEEFKELARNLESE
BHEBRPEEAE -KEAME
RNBENEEABIZRAEEE
WEMRBRERN  SERHRKRS
MBERREZHEE - FERIPER
ZREENARERBRENEHEL X
EARSBRENER EEHBBEIR
REREFBEETCEREECHR
HAE °

1.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next

year are discussed in note 32.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
Control exists when the group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the group financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.
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W %5 & B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)
In the company’s balance sheet, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 1(h)).

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The group’s and the company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially stated
at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any interest earned on these investments
as these are recognised in accordance with the

policies set out in note 1(q)(iii).

Dated debt securities that the group and/or the
company have the positive ability and intention to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are stated in
the balance sheet at amortised cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the group and/or the company commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land

held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance
sheet at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment

properties is accounted for as described in note
1(qg)(ii).

When the group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 1(g)), and the
same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease

payments are accounted for as described in note
1(g).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Other fixed assets

The land held for own use under operating leases
and buildings thereon, where the fair values of the
leasehold interest in the land and buildings cannot
be measured separately at the inception of the
lease and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease (see note 1(g)) are stated in the
balance sheet at their revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at
the balance sheet date.

Other items of fixed assets are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(h)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in
reserves. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will
be charged to profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the amount held in the
reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it
will be credited to profit or loss to the
extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously
been charged to profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EESFHBEGE)
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= HEMEEE

- Leasehold improvements
— THEEEREM

- Plant and machinery

= BMREEEE

- Furniture and fixtures

- BERBAERRE

- Computer and office equipment

- n=

= Motor vehicles

EEEEEEBE 2 TEABDERE
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Other fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of fixed assets, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired terms of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being 50 years from
the date of completion.

AFEREZEHEDR (UREESE)

Over the shorter of 5 years and the period of the lease

+4
10 years
BE+F

5 to 10 years
=ERF

3 to 5 years
HEF

5 years

(g

Moiselle International Holdings Limited &% 5 B4k A FR A 7

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual

value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series
of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the group
Assets that are held by group under leases
which transfer to the group substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the group are classified as
operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

- property held under operating
leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment
property is classified as an
investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a

finance lease (see note 1(e)); and

- land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into
by the group, or taken over from

the previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in

which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note 1(e)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries: see note 1(h)
(ii)) and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention
of the group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment in

an equity instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FESFBERGMA 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(hy EEREGE) (h)  Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) EERRAEFRERAM
FEW 5% 2 B fE ()

NERMNEERERFE &
EEEREBBILRIUATE

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any

impairment loss is determined and

HER - recognised as follows:

- 3 A 1R 8 85 B AR 51l BR - For trade and other current
Z W IR R H AR receivables and other financial
BEWRRE S E assets carried at amortised cost, the
EE BEBBREEZ impairment loss is measured as the
15 & 7= BR [ B Bk 51 difference between the asset’s
ARBEREBREZ carrying amount and the present
EWTHE BEREH value of estimated future cash
ERMEEZRENE flows, discounted at the financial
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asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past

due status, and have not been

TREENRRES individually assessed as impaired.
& T AR 1 B AR 5T Future cash flows for financial
EEAEFEURES assets which are assessed for
BEENBEEER impairment collectively are based
w—OERE ° on historical loss experience for

assets with credit risk characteristics

similar to the collective group.
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FEETBR (#) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) EEHME(E) (h) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) BB R ELERERE M (i) Impairment of investments in debt and
U 2 = 1 (4E) equity securities and other receivables
(continued)

M RERREL If in a subsequent period the
SHERL HAR amount of an impairment loss
B L AR decreases and the decrease can be
, linked objectively to an event
ji;gigzzﬁl occurring after the impairment loss
e was recognised, the impairment loss
WL 18 o L 1E S 4R is reversed through profit or loss. A
ZBETREAEZ reversal of an impairment loss shall
AR = 8RB H A AL not result in the asset’s carrying
EFERARAEM amount exceeding that which
BEBEMECEE would have been determined had
2B no impairment loss been recognised

HBEEREBRR R A bR
Mz B 5 EIRR Z AT
B 14 4% 17 75 B DA TRCKL 0 3 3F
B BEBERZBEBET
SR EE D E M -
BR > BHEMEERR ZRE
EREEREE2EETHE
W - EHABERT - RBIRZ
TR 1R AR B AR A 8% o fel A
5 B HE R RE Wk O FE W BR X 2
HEEBHY - ARATTRES
HEEEESRURAS
BiE > MAERBRTISEEE
ZEH 2 EMNSES RO -
EZAt ABRBRZRERE
HgWmE - AEE 2 BRESR
BE - BERcEMEBH R T
Al E M 2 & W E R
BB R IR ©

in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written

off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets (other than properties

carried at revalued amounts); and

= investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its net selling price
and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).



FTESRE#E)
(hy EERMEGE)

(i) REERE (&)

BRREEE

HMEEEREEESR
FMBNREELE
UHIREEES R A
e S R8s
RABIT -BEAEE
T ENERZHER
B 2REMDIEN
WA ZEMN (3 —4A
BEU)hEEZRE
T MEEREER
HEFSRDZER
HAR S 1A FERHE
ERAHEREE(E

BEEE) o

REEEED

it %5 FB LA E E A W =]
HENMGTRERRN
Mt EE8EE
HEBERED- -8
ER:PEREY SEC DR T
REEEFHEARE
BEMECEENE
EREEEBR A
B[O R EBIRER
REENFEATA
BaER e

1.

Annual Report 2009 4 B4

W %5 & B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if

determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(@i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the
group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the group
applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 1(h)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.
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(A7 #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

()

(k)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(h)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between cost and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective

interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.
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(A7 #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the
binomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options

will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Employee benefits (continued)

(iif)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility

of withdrawal.

(0) Income tax

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case

they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment

to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused

tax losses and unused tax credits.
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(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0) Income tax (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be

utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the company or the group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the company or the
group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously;

or
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FTESTEERE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) FREBi(#E) (0)  Income tax (continued)
(iv) (#) (iv) (continued)
- BEfMEHREEME = in the case of deferred tax assets
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(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that

require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to

make specified payments to reimburse the

beneficiary to the guarantee (the “holder”)

for a loss the holder incurs because a

specified debtor fails to make payment

when due in accordance with the terms of

a debt instrument.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Moiselle International Holdings Limited &% 5 B4k A FR A 7

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note
1(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the group under the guarantee, and
(i) the amount of that claim on the group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated

depreciation.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the
group or the company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
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(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that all the economic
benefits will flow to the group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered to the customers which is taken
to be the point in time when the customers
have accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts.

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in
equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

(iii)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using effective interest method.



FESTBE M)

(q)

(r)

WARER (&)

(iv) HREERA
PR 7% & U X FA 12 1 48 B8 AR 75
REKRSEEATSEAERE
B’ o

HEBE

FANIIERZERS ANERKR
H-DIBBRELNEREERE
BAREEENEZBRE - ELE
BB ABERER

BEBERAUIINEREMZFER
MEERAE BEXZAZERF
B o LR FE BRI AN B E
MAEHMHEEREBEREEHR
FEERBRAZERFH -

BOERCEBRETIZERZ
IEERENOCERRERBY
EERBREBNEEERAZER
BESBYE MELACZELRZHE
BERER 2B ER -

Annual Report 2009 4 B4

B %5 & HE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv) Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the
amount receivable can be measured

reliably.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling

at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. The resulting exchange differences are

recognised directly in a separate component of

equity.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited &5 B s A4 FR A &

MOISELLE

65



MOISELLE

Annual Report 2009 4 B4

W B e A MRk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or
indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the group or
exercise significant influence over the
group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over

the group;

(i) the group and the party are subject to

common control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the group or a
joint venture in which the group is a

venturer;

(iv)  the party is a member of key management
personnel of the group or the group’s
parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals;
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(A8 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Related parties (continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
group or of any entity that is a related

party of the group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in

their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
group that is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from

those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and fixed assets. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined
before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment.
Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as

those available to other external parties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)  Segment reporting (continued)
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are

expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing

expenses.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new Interpretations
and an amendment to HKFRSs and Interpretations that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
company. However, none of these developments has a
significant impact on the group’s or the company’s results

of operations and financial position.

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see note 33).

TURNOVER

The principal activity of the company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the group are the
design, manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion

apparel and accessories.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.
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(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HW ARBEMU S FEE 4. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME
—BBNEF —EEN\F
2009 2008
Fr Fr
$'000 $'000
Hetg A Other revenue
RITERZFIEWA Interest income from bank deposits 887 1,698
REMFHSBE Gross rental from investment properties 574 650
R E WA Service fee income 420 420
SEFMES 2 Interest income from held-to-maturity
FEWA securities - 85
MIEWA Sundry income 356 305
2,237 3,158
Hit 238 Other net income
BRAFES 2EERR Net realised and unrealised
RER (BR) W& FHE (losses)/gains on equity securities (14) 23
HEBEEE 2 W (B518) F 5 Net gain/(loss) on sale of fixed assets 37 (419)
A6 9eE ] Net exchange gain 3,207 831
3,230 435
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(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. BRBLATEF 5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BRBIADER E R (FHA) ¢ Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
ZEENEF —EENEF
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $7000
(a) B A (a) Finance costs:
ARAFANEBHEERE Interest on bank advances and other
ZBITERREM borrowings wholly repayable
BEZRE within five years 141 266
b)) BIRA(FEHE (b) Staff costs (excluding directors’
BE=ME (Hitr)) remuneration (note 7)):
REMFEMAKEEZ Contributions to defined contribution
BEN retirement plan 5,023 3,168
& TERHEMERN Salaries, wages and other benefits 83,204 71,982
88,227 75,150
(0) HiyE g : (c) Other items:
B < Auditors’ remuneration
- RHRE — audit services 1,100 1,262
— Hib R — other services 140 315
wE Depreciation 23,233 17,834
B 5 ERWERRZHERE Impairment losses on trade debtors
Mk (E[E) charged/(reversed) 195 (1,000)
EEEE2RERE Impairment losses on fixed assets - 344
THREEY KL Operating lease charges in respect of
HEEM land and buildings
- REHEENK — minimum lease payments 135,931 111,528
- BEHEE — contingent rentals 10,482 8,987
BWRENEBE SN Rentals receivable from investment

BREER 2,000
(ZZZ/)\F : 12,0007T)
BERAN (Bat17(b)

properties less direct outgoings of
$2,000 (2008: $12,000) (572) (638)

Cost of inventories® (note 17(b)) 100,098 104,280
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(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BB AR F () 5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

‘ FERAEAH22,717,000C (Z2E ‘ Cost of inventories includes $22,717,000 (2008:
J\E :21,467,0000T) ' BFEE T $21,467,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
BRAE -FERKEHEER A6 and operating lease charges, which amount is also
HEIE LA LR B 5 RH M included in the respective total amounts disclosed
5(b)KY X X ABE T o separately above or in note 5(b) for each of these

types of expenses.

SEBEBRRIRZAEMH 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
(@ HmEBRRATZHEESR: (@)  Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
—EENF —EENEF
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $000

TEBIE - BB REH Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

REFBE Provision for the year 83 2
DEFERERR Under-provision in respect of prior years 74 57
157 59
KEBIR — Current tax - PRC
REERE Provision for the year 7,046 9,199
ELEMS Deferred tax
FREMERCELE Origination and reversal of
K EmE temporary differences 128 653
MESBEIELERIELE  Effect of changes in tax rate on
2 deferred tax balances 8) 132
120 785
7,323 10,043
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government
announced a decrease in the Profits Tax rate from
17.5% to 16.5% applicable to the group’s
operations in Hong Kong as from the year ended
31 March 2009. This decrease is taken into
account in the preparation of the group’s and the
company’s 2009 financial statements. Accordingly,
the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2009
is calculated at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
for the PRC and overseas subsidiaries is charged
at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling

in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of
the Tenth National People’s Congress passed the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “new
tax law”) which became effective on 1 January
2008. Under the new tax law, the statutory
income tax rate applicable to the PRC subsidiaries
has changed from 15% to 25% progressively
within five years from 1 January 2008 (2008: 18%;
2009: 20%; 2010: 22%; 2011: 24%; 2012: 25%).
A PRC subsidiary is entitled to income tax holiday
granted by the local tax authority whereby it is
exempted from Foreign Enterprise Income Tax
(“FEIT”) for two years starting from the first profit
making year and thereafter subject to FEIT at 50%
of the preferential tax rate for the following three
years. During the year ended 31 March 2009, the
PRC subsidiary is in the third profit making year,
therefore, it is subject to FEIT at 50% of the
preferential tax rate. Under the new tax law, the
PRC subsidiary will continue to enjoy such tax

holiday until its expiry.
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(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

Furthermore, under the new tax law, a 10%
withholding tax will be levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the PRC,
however, only the dividends attributable to the
profits of financial periods starting from 1 January
2008 will be subject to the withholding tax. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty arrangement between the PRC and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investor. Pursuant to
a double tax arrangement between the PRC and
Hong Kong, the group is subject to a withholding
tax at the rate of 5% for any dividend payments
from the group’s PRC subsidiaries.
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(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. BWEBBRMTZAEH (#) 6.  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)
(b)y BEXHEGIEFREARER (b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and
E2HER: accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
Fr Fr
$'000 $000
BrE A=A Profit before taxation 27,380 62,342

REMBERBRAEZER Notional tax on profit before taxation,
ES&RWERBEGTE  calculated at the rates
BRBLADR A 2 BRBIE applicable to profits in the

tax jurisdictions concerned 6,913 13,322

FHMBZHZHEZE  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,392 1,179
BEFHBA ZFEEZE  Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (568) (987)
HEIM B A TSR AERE Tax effect of the income tax holiday of

ZHBEE a PRC subsidiary (6,013) (7,791)
KREATMERBERAWHIE  Tax effect of unused tax losses

BEZHEEZE not recognised 5,616 3,914
R ERMEEARER  Tax effect of unrecognised deferred

R IR 2 B tax arising from

2 temporary differences (83) 217
PESEHNMEA—HB2  Effect on deferred tax balances at

IEFEBL IR A ER 1 April resulting from

k=72 changes in tax rates (8) 132
DEFERBRR Under-provision in prior years 74 57
BRHREX N Actual tax expense 7,323 10,043
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EEfME 7o DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
BEEB (D REMD) E161RINB2ES Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
MewmT : 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows:
-
R
BUER B
Salaries, T8I R
EZHE  allowances  BIfETEA  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme st
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
T Tr Tr T T
$'000 $000 $"000 $"000 $'000
“EBNF 2009
HITEE Executive directors
BREA Chan Yum Kit = 5,676 = 12 5,688
®RI G Tsui How Kiu, Shirley = 3,726 = 12 3,738
#HER Chui Hing Yee = 1,951 70 12 2,033
R B % Chan Sze Chun = 944 60 12 1,016
BUHHITEE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
REBEG Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 = = = 60
ENE Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 = = - 60
180 12,297 130 48 12,655
ZEENE 2008
HiTEE Executive directors
BREA Chan Yum Kit = 5,811 = 12 5,823
®IDEE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley = 3,911 = 12 3,923
REE Chui Hing Yee - 1,755 60 12 1,827
B Chan Sze Chun - 891 50 12 953
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 48 = = = 48
RIREE Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 48 - - - 48
B Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 48 - - - 48
144 12,368 110 48 12,670

Moiselle International Holdings Limited #&w¥ B4 M A R A 7 75



MOISELLE

76

Annual Report 2009 4 B4

W B i AR Mk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. EEMe E) 7.

i ETEESERBEREUIBARAA
BHe e BER-_ZFEAF=ZA=Z+—HBF
EEERERERMRITEZEREZ
HECERNESEREEBRETE] -
B o

Fe EHREYEANEEUATERS
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

In addition, certain directors were granted options to
subscribe for shares in the company. Details of the share
options granted and outstanding in respect of each
director as at 31 March 2009 are set out under the
section “Share option scheme” of the report of the

directors.

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include
$2,831,000 (2008: $2,349,000) representing own land
and buildings provided to directors based on market

rental.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the six (2008: six) individuals with the highest
emoluments, four (2008: four) are directors whose

emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the

M) AT 2 BEENT ¢ emoluments in respect of the other two (2008: two)
individuals are as follows:

—EENE —ZEENE
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $'000
FEREMME Salaries and other emoluments 1,744 1,512
BEIEAL Discretionary bonuses 277 297
RRGHEIER Retirement scheme contributions 24 24
2,045 1,833
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

The emoluments of the two (2008: two) individuals with

tMEETIHEER : the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals

—EBAF —EEN\F
$ 2009 2008
Z — 1,000,000t Nil = 1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001t — 1,500,0007T 1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 1
= R %A 9.  PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

KRR RELGZESENEE—2E
HI A7 D T B # 3R 3= A A E971,0007T (=
ZE)\F :961,00070) 218 o

FABABREA QR AFEERN 2 H R

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the company includes a loss of $971,000 (2008:
$961,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the company’s

profit for the year:

—BEhF —EENEF
2009 2008
Tr Tr
$'000 $000
EIIARA R G BREKZ Amount of consolidated loss attributable to
BERRELGREEREHE equity shareholders dealt with in
the company’s financial statements 971) (961)
RAFEERAER Dividends from subsidiary approved and
A Z B A RS paid during the year 60,000 60,000
RARRFER Z@F Company’s profit for the year
(Krat26(b)) (note 26(b)) 59,029 59,039
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10. BRE
(@)

(b)

BEARAREERR ZAFERE

10. DIVIDENDS
(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

“EENF —EENE
2009 2008

T T
$000 $'000

E SRR 2 IR B3 iR 24
(ZZBZENE  FiR40)

REEBREZZDIRAKS
R E & R21L
(Z2ZNF  8R7)

Interim dividend declared and paid

of 2 cents per share

(2008: 4 cents per share) 5,641 11,281
Final dividend proposed after

the balance sheet

date of 2 cents per share

(2008: 7 cents per share) 5,641 19,742

11,282 31,023

REERREZD IR KRR E L
AEFEHBRARBEE -

BNEARESERR 2 E—BERF
ERE @ ERAFEEZERIKS

The final dividend proposed after the balance
sheet date has not been recognised as a liability at

the balance sheet date.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
company attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

—BBNE —EENF
2009 2008
Fr Fr
$'000 $000
BRE-BERFE » ¥R Final dividend in respect of the
FEEERERIKNRERE previous financial year, approved
K74l and paid during the year, of
(ZZENEFE  8&R1240) 7 cents per share
(2008: 12 cents per share) 19,742 33,844
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11. BERER

(@)

(b)

BRERZE

BEREABFDREAATDEL BRE
# % R FE 18 )& 120,057,000 (=
T )\FE ©52,299,0007T) R ANFEE
ERITEBER2ZEE282,030,0008
(ZZZ )\ :282,030,0008%) 1% o

SREFER
BERBBRADREAAREBRE
7= PR R FE {55 F20,057,0007C (=&
Z)\E :52,299,0007T) KA &
BEZENEBR2YEFELARER
ZEBREB282,155957 (=&
Z )\ 5 :284,970,5698%) 5t & » &
T

BBERZNEFE 8 (4F)

Annual Report 2009 4 B4

B %5 & HE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the company of $20,057,000
(2008: $52,299,000) and the number of
282,030,000 (2008: 282,030,000) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the company of $20,057,000
(2008: $52,299,000) and the number of
282,155,957 (2008: 284,970,569) ordinary shares
after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(diluted)

—BEhEF —EENEF
2009 2008
i ¢! R EE
Number of Number of
shares shares
R=B=+—H&E®K=2  Number of ordinary shares at 31 March
#H 282,030,000 282,030,000
BERRBARDA 2 Effect of deemed issue of ordinary
BRESATTER shares under the company’s share
BITEBR2SE option scheme for nil consideration 125,957 2,940,569
MR=ZB=+—HBE®K=Z  Number of ordinary shares (diluted)
28 (4% at 31 March 282,155,957 284,970,569

Moiselle International Holdings Limited &5 B s A4 FR A &
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12, 7ERE|E 12.  SEGMENT REPORTING
PHERRRAEE z M ED HEL 24 - Segment information is presented in respect of the
FRALES M2 ERNRBEEREAER group’s geographical segments. Information relating to
ERENPRAAMBEREZEF LS geographical segments based on the location of
7 e customers is chosen because this is in line with the

group’s management information reporting system.

BEBRIZDIBDEVNRPE - 8 ERE Segment outside Hong Kong represents sales to customers
MEFZHEE - located in the PRC, Taiwan and Macau.
HAAEERE -—T B Z2EBIBREE No business segment analysis of the group is presented
R RETRES R RS AEEHZ because sales of fashion apparel and accessories is the
EME DI DA only distinguishable business segment of the group.
& 2 5B Geographical segments
AEEHEEUTEIERED M : The group comprises the following main geographical
segments:
Bt -t AIE CE
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Unallocated Consolidated

“EEME SR\E CRRAR CBENE CETE SRR CREAE S3IE
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
o f i T f T R
$'000 §'000 $/000 §'000 $'000 §'000 $/000 §'000

RENRERZHA Revenue from external customers 232444 232,99 190,644 162,466 - - 423,088 415,464
REMREF ZHMHA Other revenue from external
customers - - - - 574 650 574 650
L Total 232444 232,99 190,644 182,466 574 650 423,662 416,114
APLERE Segment result 4679 19553 17756 34813 2435 54366
RAEEERERER Unallocated operating income and
expenses 5,467 3,593
H e Profit from operations 27902 57,959
HEHA Finance costs (141) (266)
TEREENR Net valuation (losses)/gains on
RENEfHE land and buildings and
(B8 /h#EERE investment properties (381) 4,649
FigHi Income tax (7,323)  (10,043)
Epigkl Profit for the year 20,057 52,99
AEEHE Depreciation for the year 9,891 7554 13342 10,260 3,233 17,834
THBEEZREEEMR/  Impairment losses charged/
(&m) (reversed)
- BWER - trade receivables - = 195 (1,000 195 (1,000
-EEEE — fixed assets - 344 - - - 344
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12. DEHE (#E) 12.  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
58 FBEN &4
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Consolidated
“ERAF —EE\F -BEAF -FBNF EEAF —FENF
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

r tr r tr r Tr
$'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 §'000

AHEE Segment assets 189,167 225753 142,197 162,992 331,364 388,745
AOBERE Unallocated assets 121,686 105,735
BEER Total assets 453,050 494,480
AIHER Segment liabilities 30,724 34,603 18,783 25,606 49,507 60,209
bl =N Unallocated liabilities 19,589 25,189
BEAE Total liabilities 69,096 85,398
TEENELL Capital expenditure
EARX incurred during the

year 5,036 10,892 10,226 13,186
FEBERESH2 Additional information concerning
HOER geographical segments:
RERMELED Segment assets by the
ZAMEE location of assets 195229 235613 136,135 153,132

RERFEREID 2 Capital expenditure

TEEfEE incurred during the
BAREX year by the location
of assets 4,907 10,718 10,355 13,360
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13. RBEEEE 13.  FIXED ASSETS
(@) AEE (@  The group
&R BE
$E EMEK
BAEEE
NATEIIE RAE
BEERAZ Furniture,
THREEY fixtures,
landand ~ IXZEE  computer
buildings R#H  andoffice  BEME
held for own Plant  equipment %6 RENE
use carried and  and motor Leasehold Nt Investment @it
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total ~ properties Total
r r r T r T r
§'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
BAG - Cost or valuation:
R=ZZtEMA-A At 1 April 2007 143,120 528 21,014 33,200 202,562 17130 219,692
EXRZ Exchange adjustments 3,568 322 399 1,815 6,104 - 6,104
EE Additions 5 341 3,330 20,407 24,078 . 24,078
HE Disposals - - (5165)  (18989)  (24,154) - (24,154)
ENOE Reclassification 3,600 - - - 3,600 (3,600) -
EffRH Surplus on revaluation 52,076 - - - 52,076 - 52,076
W B TESH Less: Elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (3,444) - - - (3,444) - (3,444)
ATERE Fair value adjustment - - - = = 2,490 2,490
WZEENE=A=1-H At 31 March 2008 198,920 5,891 19,578 36,433 260,822 16,020 276,84
& Representing:
R Cost = 5,891 19,578 36,433 61,902 - 61,902
fhE-—ZEN\E Valuation - 2008 198,920 = 5 = 198,920 16,020 214,940
198,920 5,801 19,578 36433 260,822 16,000 276,842
R=ZENEMA-A At 1 April 2008 198,920 5,891 19,578 36433 260,822 16,020 276,842
ERaE Exchange adjustments 73 88 84 130 1,034 - 1,034
2E Additions = 232 139 13,634 15,262 = 15,262
HE Disposals = - (1,261) (7,665) (8,926) - (8,926)
BEEH Deficit on revaluation (24,279) - - = (24,279) = (24,279)
B BETTESH Less: Elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (4,953) - - - (4,953) - (4,953)
ATERE Fair value adjustment - - = = = (200) (200)
RZEEHRE=A=1-H At 31 March 2009 170,420 6,211 19,797 42,532 238,960 15,820 254,780
%! Representing:
R Cost - 6,211 19,797 42,532 68,540 . 68,540
fhE-ZEEhE Valuation - 2009 170,420 = = = 170,420 15,820 186,240
170,420 6,211 19,797 42530 238,960 15,820 254,780
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BEE&E (&) 13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued)
@) KEH (&) @) The group (continued)
&R BE
£8 EKR
BAEER
IATESIE RAE
BERERZ Furniture,
THREEY fixtures,

landand ~ IXZEE  computer
buildings R#H  andofice  MEME

held for own Plant  equipment %6 RENE

use carried and  and motor  Leasehold N Investment o
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements ~ Sub-total ~properties Total
r T i r r i i
§/000 §000 §000 $000 §000 $'000 §'000

NERHELASR: Aggregate depreciation and

impairment:
RZZSLEME-A At 1 April 2007 - 2,355 13,430 21,443 37,228 - 37,228
EiAE Exchange adjustments = 72 153 1,116 1,341 = 1,341
KEERE Charge for the year 3,444 321 2,859 11,210 17,834 - 17,834
REEE Impairment losses - - - 344 344 - 344
HEREE Written back on disposal - - (4924)  (18468)  (23,392) = (23,392)
BRERHY Elimination on revaluation (3,444) = S = (3,444) = (3,444)
RZZENE=A=1-H At 31 March 2008 - 2,748 11,518 15,645 29911 - 29911
RZZZNEMA-A At 1 April 2008 - 2,748 11,518 15,645 29911 - 29911
ERRE Exchange adjustments - 21 32 38 91 - 91
REERE Charge for the year 4,953 380 2,811 15,089 23,233 - 23,233
HERBE Written back on disposal - - (900) (7,459) (8,358) = (8,358)
BRERHY Elimination on revaluation (4,953) = S = (4,953) = (4,953)
RZEBRE=A=1-H At 31 March 2009 - 3,149 13,461 23,314 39,924 = 39,924
REFE: Net hook value:

RZEENE=F=1-R At 31 March 2009 170,420 3,062 6,336 19218 199,036 15800 214,856
RZBENE=F=1-A At 31 March 2008 198,920 3,143 8,060 20,788 230911 16,020 246,931
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13. BEEEE#)
b HEER
R-FENE —METEEHEE
WEEB 2 REESHAZER
DRBEEEE RS EEZEHT
BRI

© R-ZZEZBAF=ZA=+-H &K
BzREMEUESEZRERRA
BHAEHZFRSWAEBTEZ
NHATEAEEETEM - HEH
BAHEQIRNEERTAERLE (K
BEEEREBINEMBEEEEZE
T30 {2 70 P 1 (B0 36 3t B % 38 )
BBUR 28R ET -

d R=ZZFEZAE=HA=+-—80 F&
EEERRs TR EBEYETE
o BEMUEBEEAKLSEHE
THEES2ILEERFBEEZ
AETEAREE - HETHBER
TERAR (FHEHVRMAEEDE
ity BE % 28 BB B 2 AR ER) AT o
BE-ZZhF=A=+—HBLLHE
B REMEAMEEE24,279,0007T
(ZZZ)\F : B#52,076,0007T)
R s 24,098,000 (ZZEZE )\ F .
49,917,000t ) & 1 BRIE FE Fr 5 Bt 1%
(MsE24b)) BB Z B FEE (M
26(a)) * MEAH181,000T (ZEF
N\ B882,159,000T) ER&GRE
BRRMBRFTA

13.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited &% 5 B4k A FR A 7

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d

Impairment losses

In 2008, the carrying amount of the leasehold
improvements of a retail shop was written down
to $Nil which is based on the management’s
estimation of the recoverable amount of these

assets.

The group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2009 on an open market value
basis calculated by reference to net rental income
allowing for reversionary income potential. The
valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, who have among their staff members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of

property being valued.

The group’s land and buildings held for own use
were revalued at 31 March 2009 at their open
market values by direct comparison approach by
making reference to comparable sale transactions
as available in the relevant market. The valuations
were also carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited who has recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued.
Out of the total revaluation deficit of $24,279,000
(2008: surplus of $52,076,000), $24,098,000
(2008: $49,917,000) has been transferred to the
revaluation reserve (note 26(a)), net of deferred
tax (note 24(b)) and a deficit of $181,000 (2008:
surplus of $2,159,000) has been charged/credited
to the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2009.
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13. BE&E#) 13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued)
) (&) (d)  (continued)
fid L FEER 2L REEY Had the above land and buildings held for own
EERABBFHESR R= use been carried at cost less accumulated
EENF=ZRA=+-HZKEE depreciation, the carrying amounts would have
# £80,835,000 (= FF )\ &F : been $80,835,000 (2008: $82,879,000) at 31
82,879,0007T) ° March 2009.
() WVEZEREEFEINMT : (e)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:
TEE
The group
—BEhEF —EENEF
2009 2008
Fr Fr
$'000 $000
NE&E#B In Hong Kong
-REEE ~ Long leases 54,340 54,340
—HEEE — Medium-term leases 86,500 114,400
- RHHEE — Short leases 2,300 2,500
BBEIH Outside Hong Kong
-RHHEE — Long leases 6,200 6,600
—HhHEE — Medium-term leases 36,900 37,100
186,240 214,940
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13. BE&E@#) 13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued)
h RECEEHEHAZETEE () Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
FERBREMEFFLIFERE All properties held under operating leases that
MEERZNERERRENE - would otherwise meet the definition of investment

property are classified as investment property.

AEBRKEHEHHREN* - The group leases out investment properties under
hEHE-RAVLSAB-—FE=F > operating leases. The leases typically run for an
VAR mEENEEMEERE initial period of one to three years, with an option
H-HENREBESEFTRHE to renew the lease after that date at which time all
URMmERS SEHKLEHEY terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are
rEEREHEE - usually adjusted annually to reflect market rentals.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

REERTAUBRBNEEHREREH The group’s total future minimum lease payments
REWNREEEMNREENT : under non-cancellable operating leases are

receivable as follows:

rEH
The group
—RENF —EEBN\F
2009 2008
Fr Tr
$000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 146 550
—FREBAFR After 1 year but within 5 years 130 —
276 550
(g AEEREEZRT(ZZEZENF: (g A property of the group with a carrying amount of
3,600,0007T) 2 X RERAE $Nil (2008: $3,600,000) is pledged to secure
EEERRITAME ZER - certain banking facilities granted to the group.
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14, REDFz2E® 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
N
The company

—BBNEF —EEN\F

2009 2008

Fr Tr

$'000 $000

FEmBRD > BRAE Unlisted shares, at cost 61,672 61,672

JE Wi Bf B A BRI SRR Amount due from subsidiary 126,545 111,080

188,217 172,752
BWHBARREBRERT 2EREE Amount due from subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
EEXRY  EHEBATEREEIE—FR and has no fixed terms of repayment but is not expected
mE - to be recovered within one year of the balance sheet

date.

LTERHASEEXE EEIEEFEFRE The following list contains only the particulars of
HECMBARZFE c REEFEBIN subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
FRE2RNHEBEBR - or liabilities of the group. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated.
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under

14. RHEBAR 2R (&) 14.
ZESZEFHNBRARMYAENFICOMREZ
M WERAEB M ERREESFTE -

note 1(c) and have been consolidated into the group

88
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financial statements.

ERITRHR
BRA
BERZHE
Particulars
= AR 2 of issued and =2l
KRR B fully paid-up FE %= Bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEEK
IR incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
BEERSE
Directly held
Moiselle (BVI) Limited * RBERRES 2,000% 7T 100% REZR
British Virgin US$2,000 Investment
Islands holding
MERE
Indirectly held
Always Profit Holdings KEEERES E 100% REZR
Limited * British Virgin US$1 Investment
Islands holding
EERRAF BE 1007T 100% B o3 A 8 %
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong $100 EEhiE 5
Trading of

fashion apparel

and accessories
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14. RHEBAT X (&) 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRAR
BRAS
BERZHE
Particulars
= AR 2 of issued and B8
KRR B fully paid-up FE %= Bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEEK
AR BB incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MR (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
BHRRMBBRDLAF &8 EAEER R 100% YRR B R
Boo Gie Garment Factory Hong Kong 200,0007T MEREE
Limited EER Sourcing of
1,800,001 7T materials and
Deferred property holding
non-voting
$200,000
Ordinary
$1,800,001
EHEERRDF b 27T 100% REZER
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong $2 Investment
holding
B2 (FEB)ERATF i 47T 100% B e AR 8 %
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong $4 B E 5
Trading of
fashion apparel
and accessories
FEEERERA R =8 27T 100% REZER
Busy Win International Hong Kong $2 Investment
Limited holding
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14. RHEBAR 2R (&) 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
SRITRHMR
BRA
BERZHE
Particulars
= AR 2 of issued and ¥H
KRR B fully paid-up FE %= Bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEEK
IR incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MERE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
REESARDE "E 1,0007T 100% REZR
Eastasia Plaza Limited Hong Kong $1,000 Investment
holding
Euro Legend Assets KEEERES IE 100% REZER
Limited * British Virgin US$1 Investment
Islands holding
tHIZEERER A T 5B 10,0007T 100% TER S AR ER
Grand Bridge Hong Kong $10,000 K B &
International Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
NEREBERDE &8 27T 100% REZER
iMaroon International Hong Kong $2 Investment
Company Limited holding
HERERRDE BB 10,0007T 100% e ST
Landwin Investments Hong Kong $10,000 Property
Limited holding
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14.

RKE DRz & (&) 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRAR
B A5
BEXRZFHE
Particulars
& it BY 32 of issued and B8
KRR B fully paid-up FE %= Bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEEK
AR BB incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MiEREE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
EH(BB)ARLA =8 500,0007C 100% SER 1 AR
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Hong Kong $500,000 R i g
Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
RFEBRERA A =8 27T 100% REZR
Moiselle International Hong Kong $2 Investment
Limited holding
ZEFRAF KEEERES 1% 100% T E R i IR &
Onexcel Limited * British Virgin Us$1 S
Islands Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
BEEREARAF =8 500,0007C 100% TR 1 AR 8
Pearl Jade Investments Hong Kong $500,000 S

Limited

Retail of fashion

apparel and

accessories
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(LAB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. RHEBAR 2R (&) 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
SRITRHMR
BRA
BERZHE
Particulars
= AR 2 of issued and =2l
KRR B fully paid-up FE %= Bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEEK
IR incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MERE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
BREERERAT 5B 4,0007C 100% TER SRR
Perfect National Hong Kong $4,000 B &
International Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
BEARAF KBEBARES 1E7T 100% REZER
Profair Limited * British Virgin US$1 Investment
Islands holding
HEBRERAA =8 27T 100% T I i AR &
Regal Dragon Hong Kong $2 K B &
Development Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
HERERRAF &8 1,0007T 100% MERKH
Shirley Investments Hong Kong $1,000 Property
Limited holding
REREARAF &8 47T 100% REZER
Sky Well Investment Hong Kong $4 Investment
Limited holding
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14. RHBAT 2R (#) 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERITRHAR
BRAS
BERZHE
Particulars
= AR 2 of issued and B8
KRR B fully paid-up FE %= Bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEEK
AR BB incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MR (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
ERERAE RBERRES 10,000% 7T 100% BREZR
Sosuccess Limited * British Virgin US$10,000 Investment
Islands holding
fREFE R AR A & KBAERRES 1%7T 100% REZR
Timepro International British Virgin US$1 Investment
Limited * Islands holding
ERREERAA P HEMER 100% ZE Wi IR &
Treasure Light Fashion Macau 25,0002 P9 7T X B &
Limited * Registered Retail of
capital of fashion apparel
MOP25,000 and accessories
EHREARQT &8 27T 100% REZER
United Sino Investment Hong Kong $2 Investment
Limited holding
RERIMERAF b 500,0007¢ 100% B 1o AR B B2
Viewgood Overseas Hong Kong $500,000 e E 5
Limited Trading of

fashion apparel

and accessories
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14. RHEBAT X (&) 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
SRITRHMR
BRA
BERZHE
Particulars
= AR 2 of issued and =2l
KRR B fully paid-up FE %= Bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEEK
IR incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MERE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
BERTCRINDERLQF T AfEA 100% BUER K
Ming Fung Garment PRC 2,100,0007T Manufacturing
Manufacturing Registered of garments
(Shenzhen) Company capital of
Limited ** $2,100,000
HEEE R BRAF T AfEA 100% BUER K
Yubao Fashionable Dress PRC 8,400,0007T Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ** Registered of garments
capital of
$8,400,000
RYBEFRMBRRAF T AfEA 100% Ht 3% B fe
Shenzhen Baozhuo PRC AR #500,0007T B & % B &
Fashion Wholesale Registered Wholesale of
Co., Ltd. ** capital of fashion apparel
RMB500,000 and accessories
RYBEXEFREZERRAF T AfEA 100% TER R
Shen Zhen Graceful PRC  AK#2,000,0007T K B o
Fashion Retail Registered Retail of
Limited Company ** capital of fashion apparel
RMB2,000,000 and accessories
* BIERR LM ISR SN - & These are wholly-owned foreign investment

enterprises registered under the laws of the PRC.
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15. Hth&EE 15.  OTHER ASSETS
HitEEREHS A HREREMEZESE Other assets represent rental, utility and other deposits
BHAREE BB —FRKE - which are expected to be recovered after one year from

the balance sheet date.

16. Htte®MEE 16.  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
FEEREAF
The group and the company
ZEENE —EENEF
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
REBLTZRARES Equity securities listed in
BAFE Hong Kong at fair value - 490
17. BE& 17.  INVENTORIES
(a) NEEEBBE2EEBE (a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:
rEE

The group
“BENF —EENF
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $'000
ERE Raw materials 9,763 11,506
E8m Work in progress 1,586 1,235
SR M Finished goods 62,000 71,635
73,349 84,376
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17. FE#) 17. INVENTORIES (continued)
(b) HERERXZFESHIIMUOT : (b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense is as follows:

rEE
The group

ZEENEF —ERENF

2009 2008

Fr Fr

$000 $'000

EEREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 89,632 94,798

MEFE Write down of inventories 10,466 9,482

100,098 104,280

18,  FEUCBE K H fb FE Uk 2k 18.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
rEE PN
The group The company

ZEEAE ZEENF ZBEAE ZZTENE

2009 2008 2009 2008

Tr T T Fr

$'000 $000 $'000 $000

B 5 B AR Trade debtors 19,763 38,835 - -
W RERRAE Less: Allowance for doubtful

(FfaE18(c)) debts (note 18(c)) (250) (468) - =

19,513 38,367 - -

EWKHBATFIE  Amount due from subsidiary - - 28,000 -

& > FBNHFIER  Deposits, prepayments and
Ht YR other receivables 27,672 17,731 109 109
47,185 56,098 28,109 109
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P Wi B R Bz EL At 8 W K () 18.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

P 7 e W BR S0 I EL Al FE WK (B 1 R R FfT B All of the trade and other receivables (including amount

RAZHB)EHRER —FARERERS due from subsidiary) are expected to be recovered or

B e recognised as expenses within one year.

(@  REDH (@  Ageing analysis
BUWERRAEGMERREEESE Included in trade and other receivables are trade
WERRR (MR REREBE) REEH 2 debtors (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with
IRECDMTAT : the following ageing analysis as of the balance

sheet date:
TEE
The group
—BBNEF —EEN\F
2009 2008
Fr Tr
$000 $'000
REBHBZRE Outstanding balances aged:
30BA Within 30 days 16,060 11,672
31BZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 2,700 15,108
91E£180H Between 91 to 180 days 752 9,213
181HZE365H Between 181 to 365 days 1 2,157
#i@365H Over 365 days - 217
19,513 38,367
ESEWRFABRERHE0E Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from
9QORA Bl - REFEEEHE 2 E— the date of billing. Further details on the group’s
HHBEAMTE27() © credit policy are set out in 27(a).
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18.  FEWARR K H b 8 WK (A1)
by EBESEWRRZEE
B 5 P WUR K 2 R E & 1B AR A BR
Bie# RILEEEAREDER
REMAREERIKR EEBRT
BERBEEEEE S R W AR ME
(RBFET(h))) °

RRBERFAZEZY (BEFER
SEBRBWT :

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see note

1(h)(D)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific and

collective loss components, are as follows:

rEE

The group
—EENF —ZEENEF
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $'000
REA—H At 1 April 468 1,451
BN ERE Exchange differences - 17
RBEEE Impairment losses recognised 195 —
REEIEEE Reversal of impairment losses - (1,000)
HEE 1 vy U B FR0E Uncollectible amounts written off (413) -
R=A=+—H At 31 March 250 468

R=ZBZAF=A=+—H8 %K%K
B2 &5 ERRMRL250,000T (=
T T )\F :737,0005t) E @ 5 & E
F R {E o {3 Bl R B FE U BR R T) EE
B REEF AR YEERAR
BRI E 250,000 T(Z B Z/N\F ¢
468,0007T) e AEB L ER 2L &
BRIEEEEMEKTER -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %45 B4 A FR A 7

At 31 March 2009, the group’s trade debtors of
$250,000 (2008: $737,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables relate to customers that were
in financial difficulties and specific allowances for
doubtful debts of $250,000 (2008: $468,000)
were recognised. The group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.
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18. BEWERF R HMaEWRR (&) 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(00 YEEBEZEZEWERER (c)  Trade debtors that are not impaired
TERENIEBDRKREBREZES The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are
FEWERERZIREDMAT ¢ neither individually nor collectively considered to

be impaired are as follows:

FEE
The group

—EFhE —EZNF

2009 2008

Fr Fr

$000 $'000

W BB SR E Neither past due nor impaired 16,060 11,620

BEARZE30H Less than 30 days past due 2,620 7,603

W31 B ZE90H 31 to 90 days past due 832 12,630

BHEA9THZE180H 91 to 180 days past due 1 5,404

BH181HZE365H 181 to 365 days past due - 841

3,453 26,478

19,513 38,098
WEAMPRREZERERERESR Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
HRIEHTEEATR I EREE o relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.
BB ERBEZE KRR E— Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
HEAEBERFRSKE 2B a number of independent customers that have a good
EFEBE BHREEEZLES X track record with the group. Based on past experience,
BERERDABEATUTEU management believes that no impairment allowance is
B REBTLR SEEMEREIL necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
BN BER e E LR E R o been a significant change in credit quality and the
REBLERZELEHIETHEMIE balances are still considered fully recoverable. The group
WS o does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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19. RERELEEY 19.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
rEE PN
The group The company
“EEAE ZEENFE ZZEEAE ZZZNE
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fr T Fr Fr
$'000 $’000 $'000 $/000
RITIFER Deposits with banks
—IFRBR=@A — Within three months to
AR maturity when placed 52,804 29,778 - =
—IFRBR=@A — More than three months to
E maturity when placed - 3,333 - -
RITERRES Cash at bank and in hand 47,628 48,468 244 9,686

REESBERZEE  Cash and cash equivalents
RESZEEY in the balance sheets 100,432 81,579 244 9,686

B FHMBE=MA  Less: Deposits with bank with

®BEHZ more than three
RITIFEH months to maturity
when placed - (3,333)
RITEX (B/7E21)  Bank overdrafts (note 21) - (1,499)

RiFERERER Cash and cash equivalents
ZEEeRES in the consolidated cash
ZEY flow statement 100,432 76,747
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FREE-

BAERRREMENRBEE S EMARK
REZH ZREDFTOT :
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be

settled within one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors

with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet

date:
rEE
The group
—BEhEF —EENEF
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $000
REBRE 2 R Outstanding balances aged:
30BR Within 30 days 3,441 7,128
31HEZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 353 2,350
#iB90H Over 90 days 488 760
4,282 10,238
BITEX 21.  BANK OVERDRAFTS

R-EBEZENE=A=+—80 ' ET2&K
BARZBRITRMEDAARQTRMRZAT
EREER R-ZZBBENF=A=+—H"
BERITRE I B A & B IR E 53,600,000
T2 FEZEER TR o

FaidR4THLE 4 567,690,000t (==
N\E :86,750,000t) cR=—ZZEZEAF=A
=+ —BHE & AH#K6,434,000T (ZEZN
£ 1 4,763,0007T) °

At 31 March 2009, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries’
banking facilities were secured by corporate guarantees
provided by the company. As at 31 March 2008, such
banking facilities were also secured by a legal charge on
a property of the group with a carrying amount of
$3,600,000.

The above banking facilities, amounting to approximately
$67,690,000 (2008: $86,750,000) were utilised to the
extent of approximately $6,434,000 (2008: $4,763,000)
at 31 March 2009.
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22. EBEHKRER

(a) AEEREEB(RFME AR S
EMRBD HRE B (EERG) B8
HERNERAZEEHTEGNELTE
&5t 8 ([BEEE]) - BES
EAHBEUSTAEEZRAEMR
BiRstE - RIEBERBELFTE EE
REEXEEREERTBARA Z5%M
Zat BN BB ABEWA LR
#20,0007C - BE R T EI 2 HRTT
BB 55 /88 o

by HFEZHEBLRCSEAMLE B
EERAEMRREE LEHBEL
AARTEREEARAFEZETE
TE b 2= @) 2% 5T ALK o T BN S
FE o

€ REEREXBZWBARAZESR
EEESHHL I RRSIKRAES
ZREMREFE -WEBLRAAMRS
HAERNFEZEEREHTR
B 26%MMR A IFRRNE TREF
ZBEARKEIRS A o 5 E MR
B HRRNELERITABER

B b & SN ANEE X EAEFEAT
BERABANRZHMBEREE -

22.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited &% 5 B4k A FR A 7

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $20,000.
Contributions to the MPF scheme vest

immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the
local government. These subsidiaries are required
to make contributions at certain prescribed rates
of the relevant PRC employees’ salaries to the
scheme. Contributions to the scheme vest

immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business
in Taiwan have chosen to participate in a defined
contribution scheme governed by the Labour
Pension Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of
the total salaries of participating employees that
choose to participate in the defined contribution
scheme, deposited into individual pension
accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.
Contributions to the defined contribution scheme

are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

Save as set out above, the group has no other
material obligations to make payments in respect

of retirement benefits of the employees.



23.

UBRALTANRZBRODERRS
AAAR-BE-F-A-TEARM—
AR B R ) RADA TR
BRETFETZSHE (FRBSYR
BN B2 SRR E - B H R
WAL AR+ ERENY -

REZTE ARARNESEREANED
FEAARRAREEMAMBAR ZE2HES
THAERSABE (BEES) EMAS
HYABHAEBAEMERZHER  H#
BE REERERAREBREUZIBS
NRAESEMEEHE AR AHFRS -
REFEMBRER  ARAZQAD A XN
T.OOTTERERBREZNRE -

BRECTEERAROZEE  RREE
ARDRBEXFT 2B mERRERE MY
MARERXS ARONEZ Tzl mE
(UEEERE) -

BRENTEMLEBASE2RENE
MBREAREHBERESAESOEE
REFBEAASG ZHRATE  HEZHR
TERBEBERERHAMETG TH-8
NRERESETHEAEARANURB-R
BB ©

23.
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the
company to grant options to selected participants as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
group. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of ten years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are
authorised, at their discretion, to offer full-time
employees, executives or officers, including the directors
of the company or any of its subsidiaries or any suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers who will or have
contributed to the group, options to subscribe for such
number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay $1.00 to

the company by way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the
nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant and
the average closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding

the date of grant.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised and the options are
exercisable for a period to be notified by the directors to
each option-holder upon the grant of option, such period
not to exceed ten years commencing on the date on
which the option is granted. Each option gives the holder

the right to subscribe for one share.
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23. DLBRAEAFRNNRZROERR S (& 23. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(@ BRESH (@  Movements in share options
ZEENEF —EENEF
2009 2008
%A A
Number Number
REB—BAR=A=+—H At 1 April and 31 March 5,920,000 5,920,000
R=A=+—HEBzERE Options vested at 31 March 5,920,000 5,920,000
b)) FRAEFEZBREZGRRGH (b)  The terms and conditions of the share options
U that existed during the year are as follows:
—EBNE —ZEEN\EF
2009 2008
=B TREHE TEE #A #E
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price Number Number
—EECHF “EE-HENA=+=H 1.157T
mA=A E-T-"HNA—H
2 April 2002 23 April 2002 to 1 April 2012 $1.15 5,900,000 5,900,000
—EECHF “EE=HNA=H 1.157T
mA=A E-T-"HNA—H
2 April 2002 2 April 2003 to 1 April 2012 $1.15 20,000 20,000
5,920,000 5,920,000
(c) BE-ZESZAF=A=+—HLHEF (c) No share options were exercised, granted or
EIETE REEAERERE lapsed during the year ended 31 March 2009.
IR FE R o
(d) AN EE SR (S B ERE L) (d)  The group has not recognised any expenses in
EORTLUROEER ] 2B respect of these share options, which were all
MR  AEBELERAER = granted prior to November 2002, as it took
EE_F+-ARHZZEBR advantage of the transitional provisions set out in
EEREMHEX - HKFRS 2, Share-based payment.
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24, BEEBBERATRZAESB 24.  INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
(a) EEABERMTAZEAHBERRE (@  Current taxation in the balance sheet
represents:
rEH

The group
“EThEF —EENF
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $000

AEEBRBFEHEE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax

for the year 83 2
2 EHFEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (17) (132)
66 (130)

EHBTFEABE2AEH  Balance of Profits Tax recoverable
EIR3E o323 relating to prior years 74 (1,127)
BBEINFE Taxation outside Hong Kong 4,054 4,483
4,194 3,226

RE&: Representing:

T B BRI E Tax recoverable - (1,260)
FEHiE Tax payable 4,194 4,486
4,194 3,226
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24, BERERATZMBH (F) 24.  INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)
by ERIBEEFMSHEERAE: (b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
KEE The group
REAFEEGEEERABRERZ The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
EEFEH (EE) BEZARSB recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and
DRBEEEBNT : the movements during the year are as follows:
RERHE
SREBFE
Depreciation RBER RER
allowances ~ EftW%¥  B&NE  FEEF
less than  Revaluation Future  Unrealised
related of  benefits of profits on A
depreciation  properties  tax losses inventories Total
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EEREHARE - Deferred tax arising from:
R-ZEELEMA-H At 1 April 2007 (2,056) 9,006 (1,336) (1,759) 3,855
frEERNR Charged to profit or loss 221 294 71 199 785
MR Charged to reserves - 11,337 - - 11,337
R-ZEENF=A=1-H At 31 March 2008 (1,835) 20,637 (1,265) (1,560) 15,977
RZZEENEMA—-A At 1 April 2008 (1,835) 20,637 (1,265) (1,560) 15,977
frESERNR Charged to profit or loss (376) 5 176 315 120
fmENR Charged to reserves - (3,704) - - (3,704)
RZEEAF=ZR=T-H At 31 March 2009 (2,211) 16,938 (1,089) (1,245) 12,393
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2. BEEEBEFTIFER (&) 24.  INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)
(b) CERIAEEFRSHEERAE: (A (b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)
TEH
The group
—EFhE —Z2ENEF
2009 2008
Fr Tr
$'000 $000
REESEREIZ Net deferred tax asset recognised
ELEFTEREEF4E on the balance sheet (3,002) (3,227)
REEEREREIZ Net deferred tax liability recognised
REEHEEFHE on the balance sheet 15,395 19,204
12,393 15,977
() RERELEFBHREE: (c)  Deferred tax assets not recognised:
RNEBRAD T ER T 5B b= The group and the company have not recognised
ERBBEEERELEREHEE deferred tax assets in respect of the following

temporary differences and tax losses:

rEE ZN|
The group The company
—EBNE ZZBENF ZEFhE ZBENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fr Fr Fr Fr
$'000 $000 $'000 $000
BEEE Tax losses 97,720 64,884 9,571 8,564
WERBIZEL  Depreciation allowances less
AIEEITE than related depreciation 735 1,238 - —
98,455 66,122 9,571 8,564
AERRBEEATEELEFE Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount
FERBZEEZEERAFEAZRK of $13,568,000 (2008: $4,720,000) which can be
813,568,000 T (ZZ2Z N\ & : carried forward up to five years from the year in
4,720,000 T) - RIEREH KR which the loss originated. The remaining balance
il 83%884,152,0008 T (=TT of $84,152,000 (2008: $60,164,000) does not
% 1 60,164,000/ 7v) 3 & &R HA expire under current tax legislation.
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25. BRA& 25.  SHARE CAPITAL
“ETNF —EENE
2009 2008
ROEE £ R EE £
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Tr Tr
$000 $'000
ZE Authorised:

BREB.ITZEER Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 1,000,000,000 10,000  1,000,000,000 10,000

ERTRAR Issued and fully paid:
BREMEOI TZEBR Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 282,030,000 2,821 282,030,000 2,821

EERBAAGEERTKERZRE
BEXRAERLERTE-—ZERERE-
FEEBERHARAZNGBEEZRRS

s -

ErxER
FEEEREACERERDRELEE
HEAHERBHECEEERE #ME
BHEERKEREECEARBRBEER
DEERARSHE #EARRAED
BRAEMBREZTAEATRAE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited &% 5 B4k A FR A 7

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

company’s residual assets.

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a

reasonable cost.



25.

R (&)

EXEE (&)
AEEEGEEHFHMNERELERERS
LESEE BOHREBREEERE TR
MEAKAZEMEFHE  LERELER
BHNS{CHERRBELAE -

HRASKEEZEBANESELEAME
REEBREAMBIRABERBRE -
R-ZZZAFHB FEERE-ZZN
FoRE BEEERARBUERTRAR
EKFENRDESHT BEFHAR
BEKF AEETABRTTFRRZR
BB BOHFRO NMRREEEESRH
HEEEUEMBRENKF -

AARREMBARBAZIINERZE
AIRERS
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.

Since the group is able to generate satisfactory returns
from internal capital, the group is not heavily financed by
external borrowings. During 2009, the group’s strategy, in
monitoring its capital structure, which was unchanged
from 2008, was to maintain a sufficient cash level to
meet its liquidity requirements. In order to maintain or
adjust the cash level, the group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to increase the cash

level.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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26. & 26.  RESERVES
@ A&H (@  Group
TR
BEN
i EfiffE

BHOE  Land and
RAEE HitfiE EXRE  Statutory  buildings REEF
Share Other Exchange reserve revaluation Retained #R
premium  reserve  reserve funds  reserve  profits Total
Tr Fr Tr Fr Tr Tr Tr
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

RZEE+tEMA—H At 1 April 2007 58,601 121 2,109 4,024 50,960 232,918 348,733
EFEREZRE Dividend approved
(Hiiz10) in respect of the
previous year
(note 10) = = - - - (33,844) (33,844)
BRETEMBAREKRK  Exchange differences
LERER on translation of
financial statements
of PRC subsidiaries - - 11,774 - - - 11,774
EffR& HELFBEH  Revaluation surplus,
(B 13()R24(b) net of deferred tax
(notes 13(d) and 24(b)) - - - - 38,580 - 38,580
AEEER Transfer between
reserves - - - 2,137 - (2,137) -
REERT Profit for the year - - - - - 52299 52,299
KEEEERZRE Dividend declared
(Hz10) in respect of the
current year
(note 10) - - - - - (171,281)  (11,281)
WZBENE=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 58,601 121 13,8683 6,161 89,540 237,955 406,261
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26. f#fE (&) 26.  RESERVES (continued)
(@) REHE (&) (a) Group (continued)
TR
BEY
AE  BRERE

BHAE  Land and
RGEE HitfiE EXREE  Statutory  buildings REEH
Share Other Exchange reserve revaluation Retained R
premium  reserve reserve funds  reserve  profits Total
Tr Fr Tr Fr Tr Tr Tr
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

RZEENENA—H At 1 April 2008 58,601 121 13,883 0,161 89,540 237,955 406,261
LEEREZRE Dividend approved
(iz10) in respect of the
previous year
(note 10) - - - - - (19,742)  (19,742)
BRETEMBAREKRK  Exchange differences
ZEREH on translation of
financial statements
of PRC subsidiaries - - 592 - - - 59)
BB BELRSEH  Revaluation deficit,
(B 13()R24(b) net of deferred tax
(notes 13(d) and 24(b)) - - = - (20,394) - (20,394)
ApEER Transfer between
reserves - - - 2,890 - (2,890) -
REERA Profit for the year = = - - ~ 20057 20,057
KEEEERZKE Dividend declared
(W10) in respect of the
current year
(note 10) = = = - - (5641)  (5,641)
RZEEAE=A=1-F At31 March 2009 58,601 121 14475 9,051 69,146 229,739 381,133
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26. fRfE(E) 26.  RESERVES (continued)
(b) EQFH (b)  Company

435 ME S ON REEF
Share  Contributed Retained

premium surplus profits Total
Fr Fr Fr Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZZZLFMA—-H At 1 April 2007 58,601 61,572 44,279 164,452
LEEHAEZRE Dividend approved in respect
(fiz£10) of the previous year (note 10) - - (33,844) (33,844)
REERF Profit for the year = = 59,039 59,039
REEEERZRE Dividend declared in respect
(H1iE10) of the current year (note 10) - = (11,281) (11,281)
RZZEE\E=A=1—H At 31 March 2008 58,601 61,572 58,193 178,366
R-ZZENEMA—AH At 1 April 2008 58,601 61,572 58,193 178,366
ZEEREZRE Dividend approved in respect
(#iet10) of the previous year (note 10) - - (19,742) (19,742)
REERA Profit for the year = = 59,029 59,029
TEEEERZRE Dividend declared in respect
(fiz£10) of the current year (note 10) - - (5,641) (5,641)
RZZEFRF=A=1-H At 31 March 2009 58,601 61,572 91,839 212,012
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26. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account is distributable to the shareholders
of the company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus

shares.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over
the nominal value of the shares of the
company issued in exchange therefor
pursuant to the group reorganisation which

became effective on 25 January 2002.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
PRC operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies

set out in note 1(r).
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RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to
wholly-owned foreign investment
enterprises, the PRC subsidiaries of the
company are required to set up two
statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General
reserve fund was set up by appropriating at
least 10% of its annual profit after taxation,
as determined under PRC regulations, until
the balance of the fund equals to 50% of
its registered capital. This fund can be used
to make good losses and to convert into
paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at
the discretion of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiaries. Starting from 1
January 2006, the transfer is no longer a
statutory obligation upon the revision of
the law on 27 October 2005 and no
transfer to staff general fund was made
during the year ended 31 March 2009 and
2008.

Land and building revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve
has been set up and will be dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for the revaluation of land and

buildings held for own use (note 1(f)).
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26. filifl (&) 26.  RESERVES (continued)
(0 REHERBENE) (c)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i) HAZER (vi)  Contributed surplus
BABRBERRER=-Z2Z The contributed surplus represents the
TE-AZTHHERZE difference between the then combined net
BEARMRBZHEQRE asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
RZzafEEFEELAT over the nominal value of the shares of the
REERBKLEZEBITRND company issued in exchange therefor
ZEHBEZZH BAEHBRZ pursuant to the group reorganisation which
AEERpREER o became effective on 25 January 2002. The

application of contributed surplus is the

same as the share premium.

(d)  AHDIRREE (d)  Distributability of reserves
R-ZEZAF=ZA=+—-R" At 31 March 2009, the aggregate amount of
A2k T A DR B RR B reserves available for distribution to equity
#MEEAH212,012,000T (ZZEE )N shareholders of the company was $212,012,000
£ :178,366,000T) - REER (2008: $178,366,000). After the balance sheet
B EFEZORATIREESR date the directors proposed a final dividend of
2l (ZZEZNEF B8R - & 2 cents per share (2008: 7 cents per share),
H* 55,641,000t (=2 BN\ EF : amounting to $5,641,000 (2008: $19,742,000).
19,742,00070) ° LLIBRE TSR This dividend has not been recognised as a
REEHZEE - liability at the balance sheet date.

27. &®mIE 27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FE -RBES  FERIMERERETER Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign

EEEBCEEXBBEPELE - AKE currency risks arises in the normal course of the group’s

TAEREMERB ZRAREMEEZR business. The group is also exposed to equity price risk

RERKER arising from its equity investment in other entities.

ZERBETIAEB 2P B EREBRRK These risks are limited by the group’s financial

BB - management policies and practices described below.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with long overdue
balances are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. The
group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade and other receivable to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

Investments in held-to-maturity securities and
placement of bank deposits are normally with
counterparties that have sound credit ratings.
Therefore, management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its

obligations.

At the balance sheet date, 4% (2008: 3%) and
18% (2008: 13%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the group’s largest

debtor and the five largest debtors respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet. The group has
not provided any financial guarantee which would

expose the group to credit risk.
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27. ©@MIAHE) 27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
by FREBESERE (b)  Liquidity risk
AEBCBRAEHERBAMRE The group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
HenBESHFE  UWBRREER and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
EHREHE UENEREHZ it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
MRBEESEFE - liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.
TREAEERAQXBTREHE A FE The following table details the remaining
TEBMBEEZBRTINE HER contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of
el WU ARTRRAE the group’s and the company’s non-derivative
RN BERITINERGFTEZFESX financial liabilities, which are based on
B RUEFEEE REERE contractual undiscounted cash flow (including
HZEEREZAEXH) RAEH interest payments computed using contractual
HEAQNFAWEBRZERERAH rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
ED AT B2 balance sheet date) and the earliest date the group
and the company can be required to pay:
rEH
The group
“EENF “EREN\E
2009 2008
HESER it HESES i

RETAE -FAIEE RERAE -FadEE

Total  BAKIH Total  BAIEEH

BEE  contractual Within KEE  contractual Within

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or

amount  cash flow  on demand amount  cashflow  on demand

T T T Tr Tr T

$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 §'000 $000

ERRRREMEN R Trade and other payables 49,507 49,507 49,507 60,209 60,209 60,209

RTEX Bank overdrafts - - - 1,499 1499 1,499

49,507 49,507 49,507 61,708 61,708 61,708
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27. S©®BWIA#E) 27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
by RBELRR(E) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
NN
The company
ZEENE “RINE
2009 2008
HESER it HEES
REREE -FnanE RERAE —FraEE
Totall  BAKIH Total  BAKEH
BEE  contractual Within BEE  contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or
amount  cashflow  on demand amount  cashflow  on demand
T T T T Tr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
F RN R BN Trade and other payables 1,737 1,737 1,737 1,850 1,850 1,850
(o  F=Ek () Interest rate risk
AEBZAEZRBEEERBFES The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
MEERERE - its interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.
(i) FIZE#Z#E (i) Interest rate profile
TRAAEBEREEBRER The following table details the interest rate
TRMEEREB2RRERE: profile of the group’s interest-bearing

financial assets and liabilities at the
balance sheet date:

rEH
The group
—BENF —BEN\F
2009 2008
3RS ERB=
Effective Effective
interest rate T interest rate T
$'000 $'000
BEFESREE Fixed rate financial assets:
- BIRER - Deposits with banks 0.17% 52,804 2.6% 33,111
FEERAE: Variable rate financial
liabilities:
—TEY - Bank overdrafts - - 5.25% 1,499
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227/ FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

MOISELLE

(o  F=REk(AE) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) HBEZH (i) Sensitivity analysis
RZBEZENF=HA=+—8 - At 31 March 2009, it is estimated that a
HERELEA THR—EH general increase/decrease of 100 basis
FoEHMAUZEHREREZRE points in interest rates, with all other
TEZERT  AEBEZRKR variables held constant, would increase/
B 1% g A & AR B g A A& 2 Bl decrease the group’s profit after tax and
B, RE A #528,0007T (= retained profits by approximately $528,000
ZTZ)\HF :264,000m) & (2008: $264,000) and $90,000 (2008:
90,0008 T (Z T )\ F : $264,000) respectively.
264,0007T) °
FU R E 2 A Th R R F &R The sensitivity analysis above has been
PPNEERRLE YEH determined assuming that the change in
ZEBEARZARE 2T interest rates had occurred at the balance
ERFTEESMTI A EFE sheet date and had been applied to the
EZNERBTEE - — 8 exposure to interest rate risk for both
HAABRKKREEERHA derivative and non-derivative financial
REBET —EEFHEEH instruments in existence at that date. The
HEZEBE2EH —TT)N 100 basis point increase or decrease
FILAE —EEEDH - represents management’s assessment of a

reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2008.

(d)  SEREE (d)  Foreign currency risk

HRASEZARHRZHIUET

EnHE RtFEHRIES K5
WERE HRETHEBITHNE &
BEEREL BiEXTERE
REg -Filt EEERRIER
MR-

The group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk because most of the transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and
United States dollars (“USD”). As USD is pegged
to HKD, the management does not expect any
significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange
rate. Therefore, management considers the

exposure to foreign currency risk to be low.
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27. S®WMIAE)
(e RAEE®RRER
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RAELEBAEZREAEERRA
K-FIELMEEEREBZE_ZZ
hWE=ZA=+—-HLtEEZHEH
=

(f) AFEE
FEEALHMEEREBETREL
RZZZENEFR=-ZFZENF=ZA
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REBEIE - MEBARZAGRARE
EH REREEHEERD - &R
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28. &IE
(a) RZZBZAE=ZA=+—HIER
BERREHBEZERBITER

27.

28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

®

(a)

Equity price risk

In 2008, the group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from equity investments classified as other
financial assets (see note 16). All of these
investments are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Given that the amount of these equity investments
is not significant, management considers the
group’s exposure to equity price risk to be low. All
financial assets were disposed of during the year
ended 31 March 2009.

Fair values

All significant financial assets and liabilities are
carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 March 2009 and 2008.
Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed repayment terms. Given
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their

fair values.

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March

2009 not provided for in the financial statements

AEWT were as follows:
rEE

The group
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
EHEY Contracted for 687 492
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28. AiE (&) 28.  COMMITMENTS (continued)
by R=ZZEZAhFE=ZB=+-—H0 RE (b) At 31 March 2009, the total future minimum lease
TARGRREHEERRARNZ& payments under non-cancellable operating leases
BREESRBEEAHNT : are payable as follows:
FEE
The group
—EFhE —EZNF
2009 2008
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
—£R Within 1 year 105,762 103,547
—FRELFR After 1 year but within 5 years 95,925 104,937
201,687 208,484
rEERKEHEHAETYE- The group leases a number of properties under
ZEHN—RALHB-—ERHF operating leases. These leases typically run for an
b 7] R A0 B B R R R T B R RE initial period of one to five years, with an option
HN-HENRBEEERNBEFRE to renew the lease when all terms are
BUR R 35FE & o renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted

annually to reflect market rentals.

BREXHBE2ZEHESRD & In addition to the minimum lease payments
EEEAREXERSE THEMHR disclosed above, the group has commitments to
H—EBDLERSES A RE 2R make rental payments at a percentage of turnover
' for certain leased properties.
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29, REEE
(a) RZEFEAE=ZA=+—8 -
ARAABRETEZEREHRBE L
FAZRTRME@RITELER
& H6,434,000C (ZZZ )\ F :
4,763,0007C) EEE A ©

(b) BHE-_ZZhAhF=A=+—HL
FEHB ARARTHR—BHES
m—XE2EHNBRARRMEE KRR
BeRBHEESIRERNZHEESD
BHE-REF-RZEZENF=A
=+—H BBEEE%1,204,0007T
(ZZZ)\F : 1,044,0007T) °

AAFUEERHZERER 25
REWFBEAFRAUEBHER i
BAFRAEBEMR T AKRARE
RE(EBEER) B3R /24
TAH: B#ARTE HEBEEREH]
ASEFEZERZ 2D FE - Bt
FHERYEIFERMEBERUD
FEFE -

208
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 March 2009, guarantees were given to
banks by the company in respect of banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries which were utilised to the extent of
$6,434,000 (2008: $4,763,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the
company has also issued a single guarantee to a
supplier against obligations or sums payable for
goods and services supplied to a wholly owned
subsidiary. At 31 March 2009, such obligations
amounted to $1,204,000 (2008: $1,044,000).

These guarantees were issued by the company at
nil consideration. The transactions were not at
arm’s length, and it is not possible to measure
reliably the fair value of these transactions in
accordance with HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement: Financial
guarantee contracts, had they been at arm’s
length. Accordingly the guarantees have not been
accounted for as financial liabilities and measured

at fair value.
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30.  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the group
entered into the following material related party

transactions:

(@  Transactions with related companies

—BENE —EENF

2009 2008

F5 5

$'000 $000

SHEYEZHERA Rental income from sub-lease - 160
REMEZHEWA Rental income from investment property 420 420
ESER2HEMRX Rental expense for director’s quarter 600 600
BABNHERX Rental expense for commercial unit - 311

BEEBALTT L 2HSWARREX
DBRINFHEEREZGREE -
REZBZEARF=ZA=+—HR=Z
ENF=ZA=+—H - I Eg
ARBBEZREREER -

b)) FEEBASHE
TEEEAEME (BEME7ARK
BXNTARANTES 28R W

Rental fee income and expenses with related companies
were at terms mutually agreed by both parties. There
were no outstanding balances with related companies as
at 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008.

(b)  Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the company’s

s < executive directors as disclosed in note 7, is as
follows:
—EENF —EEN\F
2009 2008
it i
$'000 $'000
EHREEEF Short-term employee benefits 12,928 12,958
BRZESERN Post-employment benefits 60 60
12,988 13,018
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31. BRARARBRAERAFA 31.
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|
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PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

At 31 March 2009, the directors consider the parent and
ultimate controlling party of the group to be Super Result
Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Note 27 contains information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to financial instruments. The
group believes the following accounting policies involve
critical judgements and estimates used in the preparation

of the financial statements.

() Impairment of fixed assets
The group assesses annually whether fixed assets
have any indication of impairment in accordance
with the relevant accounting policies. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the
assets would be determined by reference to value
in use and net selling price. Value in use is
determined using the discounted cash flow
method. Due to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the
future cash flows and net selling prices, the
estimated recoverable amount of the assets may
be different from its actual recoverable amount
and profit or loss could be affected by the

accuracy of the estimations.
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32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

()

Impairment of trade debtors

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of trade debtors may not be recoverable, the assets
may be considered “impaired” and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS
36, Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of
trade debtors are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. The
recoverable amount of trade debtors is the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return of similar assets. The
group uses all available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable

approximation of recoverable amount.

Write down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends
and management judgement. Based on this
review, write down of inventories will be made
when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to
changes in market trends, actual consumption
may be different from estimation and profit or loss

could be affected by accuracy of this estimation.
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BE_EENF=A=Z=1+—HLEE
EEMEI RERZIEET ~ FEER
KRBT E

33.

EZEUBRERTEXBEY  BFBSFE
SCHMSZIAMBET  MEBEREE
ZEE]  HEEARZREREZ 22
NEZR=Z+-—BLEFEEDBRER B
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AEBREFGERRPZSER - HIZER
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HKAS 1 (revised 2007)
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HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

33.
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Operating segments

BBHEZ 25

Presentation of financial statements

EF Bt &

Customer loyalty programme
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2009 and which have not

been adopted in these financial statements.

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of

initial application.

So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to result in a restatement of the group’s results of

operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments are expected to
result in amended disclosures in the financial statements,
including restatement of comparative amounts in the first

period of adoption:

RTI AR z&
Bz Et EAENR
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

—EEAF-A-A
1 January 2009

—EEAF—-A—H
1 January 2009

—EZNFE+LH—H
1 July 2008
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Group Financial Summary

(LA 557 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

UTARETIMEMBEERR 2 AKEERE
CEEAFZAZST-HLERAEFESFE T
REREEREBBZIHE -

The following is a summary of the published results and assets
and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

March 2009 prepared on the basis as set out in the notes below.

5 Results
BE=A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March
“BRhE -BB\F -BTLE -TTAE -BIEF
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Fr Fr Fr ST Fr
$000 $/000 $7000 $/000 $/000
EERH Turnover 423,088 415,464 352,217 311,617 292,124
wEHER Profit from operations 27,902 57,959 85,459 75,714 80,599
L& B AR Finance costs (141) (266) (365) (251) (505)
T b R EEY) Net valuation (losses)/gains
REREWHE 2 HE on land and buildings
(E518) s EE and investment properties (381) 4,649 2,975 9,972 1,813
R %% A1 % F Profit before taxation 27,380 62,342 88,069 85,435 81,907
et Income tax (7,323) (10,043) (9,815) (6,624) (6,150)
FRER Profit for the year 20,057 52,299 78,254 78,811 75,757
BRER Earnings per share
HA Basic $0.07 $0.19 $0.28 $0.28 $0.27
e Diluted $0.07 $0.18 $0.27 $0.28 $0.27

Moiselle International Holdings Limited &5 Bk 4 FRA 7
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BENEE Assets and liabilities
=A=+-H
As at 31 March
“2ENF -EET\F -STLFE -BTAF -TBHF
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Z5)" (&%)
(restated)”  (restated)"
T Fr Fr Fr Fr
$000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
BEE&E Fixed assets 214,856 246,931 182,464 135,644 112,274
Hih&EE Other assets 14,226 20,519 13,558 12,118 7,026
EEFBHEE Deferred tax assets 3,002 3,227 4,112 4,617 4,276
REBEERE Net current assets 167,265 157,609 159,387 154,273 141,116
EERAE Total assets less
EE8AE current liabilities 399,349 428,286 359,521 306,652 264,692
kRBEE Non-current liabilities (15,395) (19,204) (7,967) (5,946) (4,257)
383,954 409,082 351,554 300,706 260,435
[ Share capital 2,821 2,821 2,821 2,820 2,818
f#1E Reserves 381,133 406,261 348,733 297,886 257,617
383,954 409,082 351,554 300,706 260,435
Biat - Note:
(1) ERVIERBDEEFEZ-_ZEE~F=H (1)  Deposits of $12,118,000 as at 31 March 2006 previously included

=+—HiF£12,118,000t B EF 2 EAH
HEE BAFEZ2HFLECESY  UEL
BHE -

in net current assets have been re-classified as other assets. For
comparison purpose, figures for the prior years have also been

reclassified.
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